
1

MEETING: AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

DATE: Wednesday 25th March, 2015

TIME: 3.00 pm

VENUE: Town Hall, Southport

Member

Councillor

Substitute

Councillor
Councillor Roberts (Chair)
Councillor McGinnity (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Ashton
Councillor Brennan
Councillor Mark Dowd
Councillor Lord Fearn
Councillor Jones
Councillor John Joseph Kelly
Councillor Lappin
Councillor Shaw

Councillor Friel
Councillor Byrom
Councillor Robertson
Councillor Mahon
Councillor Dams
Councillor Weavers
Councillor Kermode
Councillor Atkinson
Councillor Lewis

COMMITTEE OFFICER: Ruth Appleby
Democratic Services Officer

Telephone: 0151 934 2181
Fax: 0151 934 2034
E-mail: ruth.appleby@sefton.gov.uk

  

If you have any special needs that may require arrangements to 
facilitate your attendance at this meeting, please contact the 
Committee Officer named above, who will endeavour to assist.

We endeavour to provide a reasonable number of full agendas, including reports at 
the meeting.  If you wish to ensure that you have a copy to refer to at the meeting, 
please can you print off your own copy of the agenda pack prior to the meeting.

Public Document Pack



2

This page is intentionally left blank.



3

A G E N D A

1.  Apologies for absence

2.  Declarations of Interest
Members are requested to give notice of any personal or 
prejudicial interest and the nature of that interest, relating to 
any item on the agenda, in accordance with the Members 
Code of Conduct.
 

3.  Minutes (Pages 5 - 10)
Minutes of the meeting held on 10 December 2014 

4.  Whistleblowing Policy and Constitutional Amendments (Pages 11 - 
24)

Report of the Director of Corporate Services 

5.  External Audit Annual Certification Report 2013/14 (Pages 25 - 
38)

Report of the Council’s External Auditors - 
PricewaterhouseCoopers 

6.  External Audit Plan 2014/15 (Pages 39 - 
70)

Report of the Council’s External Auditors - 
PricewaterhouseCoopers 

7.  Treasury Management 2014/15 - Position to February 
2015

(Pages 71 - 
76)

Report of the Head of Corporate Finance and ICT 

8.  Audit Plan 2014/15 - Internal Audit Performance Report - 
April 2014 to February 2015

(Pages 77 - 
94)

Report of the Head of Corporate Finance and ICT 

9.  Internal Audit Annual Plan (Pages 95 - 
112)

Report of the Head of Corporate Finance and ICT 

10.  Risk Management Services (Pages 113 - 
126)

Report of the Head of Corporate Finance and ICT 

11.  Internal Audit Fraud Report (Pages 127 - 



4

134)
Report of the Head of Corporate Finance and ICT 

12.  Corporate Risk Register Quarterly Report (Pages 135 - 
144)

Report of the Head of Corporate Finance and ICT 

13.  Exclusion of Press and Public
To consider passing the following resolution:

That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for 
any items of business which might involve the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 3 
and 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act.  The Public 
Interest Test has been applied and favours exclusion of the 
information from the Press and Public. 



THIS SET OF MINUTES IS NOT SUBJECT TO “CALL-IN”

10

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, BOOTLE
ON  10 DECEMBER 2014

PRESENT: Councillor Roberts (in the Chair)

Councillors McGinnity, Brennan, Lord Fearn, Jones, 
John Joseph Kelly, Lappin and Shaw

25. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Ashton and his 
substitute Councillor Robertson; and Councillor M. Dowd and his 
substitute Councillor Dams.

26. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were received.

27. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

RESOLVED:

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 10 September 2014 be confirmed 
as a correct record.

28. CONSTITUTION UPDATE - OUTCOMES FROM THE MEMBER 
WORKING GROUP 

Further to Minute No. 21 of 10 September 2014, the Committee considered 
the report of the Director of Corporate Services on outcomes from the Audit 
and Governance Working Group on the following issues:

 Review of the terms of reference of Planning Committee
 Review of Standards procedures
 Review of Whistle-blowing Policy and procedures
 Review of petition scheme
 Other minor Constitutional amendments

RESOLVED: That

(1) Planning Committee be requested to consider:

(i) proposed changes to the terms of reference (delegations) of the 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE- WEDNESDAY 10TH 
DECEMBER, 2014

11

Planning Committee outlined in paragraph 1.2 of the report; and

(ii) proposed amendments to the Constitution outlined in paragraph 
1.8 of the report, in relation to planning application petitions; 
and

(1) Council be recommended to approve:

(i) the amendments outlined in paragraph 1.9 of the report in 
relation to the general petition scheme, subject to (ii) below;  

(ii) the minimum number of signatures required for a petition 
triggering the discussion of a matter by the full Council, being 
revised from 2750 to1,000;

(iii) the minor Constitutional amendments outlined in paragraphs 
1.10 and 1.11 of the report; 

(iv) an amendment in relation to Standards Procedures referred to 
in paragraph 1.4 and Appendix 1 of the report, that Paragraph 
14 of the Arrangements for Dealing with the Code of conduct 
Complaints under the Localism Act 2011 (Revision of These 
Arrangements) be split into (i) and (ii) as follows:

“Paragraph 14.  Revision of these Arrangements

(i) The Council may by resolution agree to amend these 
Arrangements; and

(ii) The Monitoring Officer and the Hearing Sub-Committee 
be authorised to depart from these Arrangements 
where considered expedient to do so in order to 
secure the effective and fair consideration of any 
matter.”; and

(3) the progress to date with respect to the review of the Whistle-blowing 
Policy be noted and a further report be brought to the Audit and 
Governance Committee meeting on 25 March 2015.

29. HEARINGS SUB-COMMITTEE - OUTCOME OF INVESTIGATION 

The Committee considered the report of the Monitoring Officer on the 
outcome of an investigation by the Hearings Sub-Committee held on 18 
September 2014, into a complaint made against Councillor Peter 
Papworth.

RESOLVED:

That the decisions and recommendations of the Hearings Sub-Committee 
be noted.

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE- WEDNESDAY 10TH 
DECEMBER, 2014

12

30. TREASURY MANAGEMENT 2014/15  - POSITION TO 31 
OCTOBER 2014 

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Corporate Finance 
and ICT which provided details of the Treasury Management activities 
undertaken in the current financial year up until 31 October 2014.

RESOLVED:

That the Treasury Management update to 31 October 2014 be noted.

31. AUDIT PLAN 2014/15 - INTERNAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE 
REPORT - APRIL 2014 TO NOVEMBER 2014 

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Corporate Finance 
and ICT which provided a summary of internal audit work undertaken 
during the period 1 April 2014 to 30 November 2014.  The Committee was 
required to be apprised of and review internal audit work as part of its 
review of the internal control environment and overall Governance 
arrangements.

RESOLVED: That

(1) the report be noted; and

(2) the Head of Corporate Finance and ICT be requested to submit a 
further report updating on the Review of HR Transactional Services 
and the progress on action being undertaken in relation to the 
compliance and protocols established for the recruitment of new 
employees and, in particular, the performance of pre-employment 
screening checks undertaken by both the Council and arvato 
Government Services.

32. INTERNAL AUDIT FRAUD REPORT 

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Corporate Finance 
and ICT which provided a summary of the proactive anti-fraud and 
corruption and investigation work undertaken during 2014/15 by the 
Internal Audit Team, together with brief details of completed investigations.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

33. INTERNAL AUDIT FRAUD INVESTIGATIONS 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE- WEDNESDAY 10TH 
DECEMBER, 2014

13

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Corporate Finance 
and ICT which provided a summary of the ongoing investigations and new 
referrals of suspected fraud dealt with by the Internal Audit Team since the 
meeting of the Committee held on 10 September 2014.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

34. RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICES QUARTERLY REPORT 

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Finance and ICT 
which provided a quarterly update on the provision of Risk Management 
Services.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

35. CORPORATE RISK REGISTER - QUARTERLY UPDATE 

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Corporate Finance 
and ICT on the work undertaken on the management and mitigation of risk 
within the Council since the last meeting of the Committee. The report also 
provided details of the Corporate Risk Register which had been updated to 
reflect the Council’s corporate objectives and monitor the Council’s 
strategic risks.

RESOLVED: 

That the updated Corporate Risk Register be approved.

36. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

Members wished to refer to restricted information contained in the 
Appendices to the report at Item 10 on the Agenda (Revenues – Write-off 
of Irrecoverable Debts).

It was therefore,

RESOLVED: 

That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
following item of business, because of the likely disclosure of exempt 
information contained in the Appendices to the report, as defined in 
Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act.  The Public Interest Test 

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE- WEDNESDAY 10TH 
DECEMBER, 2014

14

had been applied and favoured exclusion of the information from the Press 
and Public.

37. REVENUES - WRITE-OFF OF IRRECOVERABLE DEBTS 

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Corporate Finance 
and ICT which sought approval to write-off debts amounting to 
£527,333.92.

RESOLVED:

That 18 non-domestic rate debts amounting to £306,388.31, 7 Sundry 
Debts amounting to £210,760.01 (plus VAT which is recoverable from HM 
Revenue and Customs) and 1 Council Tax debt amounting to £10,185.60 
be written off.  
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to:  Audit and Governance
Committee

Date of 
Meeting:

25 March 2015

 Council 23 April 2015

Subject: Whistleblowing Policy and 
Constitutional Amendments

Wards 
Affected:

All

Report of: Director of Corporate Services

Is this a 
Key 
Decision?

No Is it included in the Forward Plan? No

Exempt/Confidential No 

Purpose/Summary
Further to the Audit and Governance Committee Meeting on 10 September 2014 and the 
deliberations of the Member Working Group,  the Confidential Reporting Policy has now 
been amended and re-named as the Whistleblowing Policy and requires consideration 
by Members.

The report also provides an update on progress with respect to a number of 
Constitutional amendments.

Recommendations

(1) Audit and Governance Committee be requested to:

(i) Refer to Council the proposed Whistleblowing Policy as set in out in 
Appendix 1 to the report.

(ii) Note that a further report on proposals for the implementation of the 
training associated with the introduction of the Whistleblowing Policy will 
be submitted to a future meeting.

(iii) Refer to Council the amendments to the Constitution as set out in 
paragraph 1.(b) of the report, in relation to the Planning Committee, the 
Health and Wellbeing Board and the Terms of Reference for the Older 
People and Health Cabinet Member.

(2) Council be requested to:

(i) Approve the proposed Whistleblowing Policy as set in out in Appendix 1 
to the report.

(ii) Approve the amendments to the Constitution as set out in paragraph 
1.(b) of the report in relation to the Planning Committee, the Health and 
Wellbeing Board and the Terms of Reference for the Older People and Health 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



Cabinet Member.

How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Objectives?

Corporate Objective Positive 
Impact

Neutral 
Impact

Negative 
Impact

1 Creating a Learning Community √

2 Jobs and Prosperity √

3 Environmental Sustainability √

4 Health and Well-Being √

5 Children and Young People √

6 Creating Safe Communities √

7 Creating Inclusive Communities √

8 Improving the Quality of Council 
Services and Strengthening Local 
Democracy

√

Reasons for the Recommendations:

To ensure good governance and transparency within Sefton Council.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 

It is open to Members not to amend the Whistleblowing Policy and/or the proposed 
Constitutional amendments, or to amend them in a different way.  Officers believe that 
the draft Policy and Constitutional amendments presented, best reflect good practice and 
in particular the Policy has been refined to suit Sefton Council’s circumstances.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs
Nil

(B) Capital Costs
Nil

Page 12

Agenda Item 4



Implications:

The following implications of this proposal have been considered and where there are 
specific implications, these are set out below:

Financial
None arising from the contents of the report.
Legal
These are contained within the contents of the report.
Human Resources
None arising from the contents of the report.
Equality
1. No Equality Implication

2. Equality Implications identified and mitigated

3. Equality Implication identified and risk remains

Impact of the Proposals on Service Delivery:

Both the Whistleblowing Policy and the Constitutional amendments, if adopted, will 
ensure that good practice is embedded in each of these respective issues.

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

The Head of Corporate Finance and ICT (FD 3496/15) has been consulted and has no 
comments to add to the report.

The Head of Corporate Legal Services (LD 2788/15) is the author of the report.

Implementation Date for the Decision 

Immediately following the Council meeting.

Contact Officer: Jill Coule, Head of Corporate Legal Services and Monitoring Officer
Tel: 0151 934 2031
Email: jill.coule@sefton.gov.uk

Background Papers: 

There are no background papers available for inspection.

√

Page 13

Agenda Item 4

mailto:jill.coule@sefton.gov.uk


1. Introduction/Background

a) Review of the Council’s Confidential Reporting Policy

Members will recall that a review was undertaken of the Council’s Confidential 
Reporting Policy as part of the Internal Audit Plan approved by the Audit and 
Governance Committee on 27 March 2014.  Sefton Council has up to now called 
its policy, which deals with “Whistleblowing”, the Confidential Reporting Policy.  
This report updates Members on the rationale for review and the work being 
undertaken to date.  

To summarise the rationale, the ability to ‘blow the whistle’ is imperative to good 
governance of the Council.  Sefton Council wants the Policy to be accessible to 
those/all who may have cause to use it.  The audit report made a number of 
recommendations. There were zero critical recommendations, two high 
recommendations and nine medium recommendations.  

As part of the update and in order to achieve the desired outcome of 
transparency, Sefton Council should also review current training arrangements 
and consider implementing whistleblowing training for all new staff.  Legal and/or 
Personnel staff will ensure that all Employees and Officers of the Council are 
briefed regarding the changes.    

In line with the Audit Report recommendations, the Council used the Public 
Concern at Work model policy as a basis for the new policy.  At the Member 
Working Group, a discussion took place as to which officers should be identified 
as key contacts within the policy, what steps officers should take to raise 
awareness of, understanding of and confidence in the policy and where on the 
inter/intranet the policy should be located.  It is currently located on the Intranet 
along with the Grievance Policy in the Human Resources (HR) procedures.

The policy and associated arrangements are now presented to the Audit and 
Governance Committee for consideration and recommendation to Council.

With respect to training and raising awareness of this policy, a number of methods 
will be utilised:

 Policy to be included in information for all new staff starters
 Item on the Intranet ‘Informing Sefton’
 Greater prominence/ease of navigation on the Council’s Intranet to the 

Whistleblowing Policy
 Short presentation to senior Departmental Management Teams to raise 

awareness of the revised policy and consider best ways to raise 
awareness/cascade the information in their respective teams.  The 
approach will need to be tailored to ensure that all teams are briefed 
appropriately.

It is suggested that a follow up report be provided to Members later in the year to 
advise on the implementation of the training.

Page 14

Agenda Item 4



b) Constitutional Amendments Update

Planning Committee

At the last meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee in December 2014, 
Members determined that certain Constitutional amendments should be 
considered by the Planning Committee.

Those Constitutional amendments were proposed changes to 

 the terms of reference (delegations) of the Planning Committee, and
 the planning applications petition process.

Minute 96 from the Planning Committee meeting on 7 January 2015, confirms that 
it was resolved that:

“(1) It be noted that the following proposed amendments would be inserted into the 
Constitution

The addition of the following words to Chapter 7 Paragraph 21:

“Consideration of Conservation Area Appraisals and to make recommendations to 
Cabinet”

The addition of the following words to Chapter 5 Paragraphs 29- 61:

“To receive recommendations from the Planning Committee regarding Conservation Area 
Appraisals and to determine them accordingly”.

(2) The proposal to remove the requirement to submit a petition with at least 25 signatures 
and endorsement by a Councillor to be able to speak at Planning Committee and to 
replace this with a requirement to register an intention to speak by a set time before the 
Planning Committee meeting be deferred and the Director of Built Environment be 
requested to consider the issues surrounding the present petition scheme and submit a 
further report to this Committee.”

With respect to item number (2) above, initial discussions have been held with the 
Director of Built Environment and it is anticipated that the report will be considered by 
Planning Committee early in the next municipal year.

Health and Wellbeing Board and Consequential Amendments

The Better Care Fund as issued by government attaches a number of conditions to the 
governance of that Fund.  This means that there must be some amendments to the terms of 
reference as set out in the Council’s Constitution to the Health and Wellbeing Board.   
Whilst the Better Care Fund is not the only Section 75 agreement the Council has, the size 
and scale of this has warranted a comprehensive approach being adopted to all of these 
arrangements.  It is also hoped that these governance arrangements, if approved, will 
future proof the Council from a governance perspective should further agreements be 
entered into.  
Set out below are the existing and the proposed terms for the Health and Wellbeing Board.  
A report which sets out more detail on the Better Care Fund and the required legal 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



agreement (Section 75 agreement) will be considered by Cabinet at its meeting on 26 
March 2015.  A verbal update will be provided to Cabinet members on any comments 
arising from this Committee’s consideration of the proposed changes to the terms of 
reference, if necessary.

The current terms of reference for the Health and Wellbeing Board can be found in 
Chapter 7 of the Constitution – Regulatory and Other Committees.  

Health and Wellbeing Board – Current Terms of Reference

 To encourage integrated working between commissioners of health services, to 
public health and social care services. 

 To encourage those who provide services related to wider effects of health, such 
as housing, to work closely with the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

 To lead on the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and Joint Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) including involving users and the public in their 
development. 

 To be involved throughout the process as Clinical Commissioning Groups 
to develop their commissioning plans and ensure that they take proper account of 
the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy when developing these plans. 

Health and Wellbeing Board – Additional Proposed Term of Reference

 To be responsible for the review of performance and oversight of Section 75 
Agreements prepared under the National Health Service Act 2006 or any 
subsequent legislation.

The detailed Section 75 Agreement for the Better Care Fund sets out in detail the role the 
Board will need to undertake to fulfil this responsibility.   In essence it will be to map joint 
resources, review delivery of outcomes generally and individual schemes conducted under the 
framework of the agreement.  The Board will need to establish a set of principles against 
which commissioning takes place, ensuring that these are allied to the parties to the 
Agreement’s commissioning principles.   

There are a number of executive actions associated with the administration of these Section 75 
Agreements.  Examples of these are set out below:

 Where the Council is to become Lead Commissioner as defined by the Agreements, then 
any such commissioning will need to be considered by the Cabinet Member or Cabinet 
dependent on the value of the proposed function or service and must use the Council’s 
procurement processes.

 Consideration of variation, renewal or termination of the Agreement will be a delegated 
function and again, dependent on the nature of the variation, could be agreed by the 
relevant officer, the Cabinet Member and/or Cabinet.

 As the Council manages the budgets on behalf of the Clinical Commissioning Group and 
the Council, it will need to ensure that approval for expenditure from the budgets pooled 
accordingly are embedded into the Council’s financial management systems.
It is important that the executive elements of the management of any Section 75 
agreements are embedded into the Council’s processes.  It is not necessary to further 

Page 16

Agenda Item 4



amend the Cabinet Terms of Reference specifically due to the generic principle which is 
currently recorded in the Constitution as follows:

Chapter 5 – The Cabinet

Paragraph 29

“At the meeting of Council on 29th May 2008 Members resolved that Cabinet should 
have a general power of competence to determine all executive functions 
(notwithstanding the general delegations set out below) or elsewhere within the 
Constitution.”

It is thought worthy of amending the Older People and Health Cabinet Member Terms of 
Reference to reflect this area of responsibility by adding the following:

 Section 75 agreements prepared under the National Health Service Act 2006 or 
any subsequent legislation.

In exercising any executive responsibilities required for the management of the Section 75 
Agreements, the Cabinet Member will no doubt be mindful that those responsibilities will 
be exercised consistently with other parts of the Constitution such as the procurement 
thresholds.

 

A further amendment is required with respect to the work of the Health and Wellbeing Board 
arising from the requirements of the National Health Service (Pharmaceutical and Local 
Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013/349.   It is therefore proposed to amend the terms of 
reference for the Health and Wellbeing Board as follows:

 To approve the pharmaceutical needs assessments and ensure that it is published. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



SEFTON COUNCIL WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

INTRODUCTION

All of us at one time or another have a concern about what is happening at work.  
Usually these are easily resolved.  However, when the concern feels serious because it is 
about a possible fraud, danger or malpractice that might affect others or the organisation 
itself, it can be difficult to know what to do.

You may be worried about raising such a concern and may think it best to keep it to 
yourself, perhaps feeling it’s none of your business or that it’s only a suspicion.  You may 
feel that raising the matter would be disloyal to colleagues, managers or to the organisation.  
You may decide to say something, but find that you have spoken to the wrong person or 
raised the issue in the wrong way and are not sure what to do next.

The Council and the Chief Executive are committed to running the organisation in the best 
way possible and to do so we need your help.  We have introduced this policy to reassure 
you that it is safe and acceptable to speak up and to enable you to raise any concern you 
may have about malpractice at an early stage and in the right way.   Rather than wait for 
proof, we would prefer you to raise the matter when it is still a concern.  

This policy applies to all those who work for us; whether full-time or part-time, employed 
through an agency or as a volunteer.  If you have a whistleblowing concern, please let us 
know.  

If something is troubling you that you think we should know about or look into, please use 
this policy.  

If, however, you wish to make a complaint about your employment or how you have been 
treated, please use the grievance policy or bullying / harassment policy - which you can get 
from your manager or personnel officer. The relevant policies are also available on the 
intranet.   If you have a concern about financial misconduct or fraud, please see our Anti-
Fraud Policy.  This Whistleblowing Policy is primarily for concerns where the public interest 
is at risk, which includes a risk to the wider public, customers, staff or the organisation itself.

If in doubt - raise it!
OUR ASSURANCES TO YOU

Your safety

Page 19

Agenda Item 4



The Council and the Chief Executive are committed to this policy.  Provided you are raising a 
genuine concern, it does not matter if you are mistaken.  

If you raise a genuine concern under this policy, you will not be at risk of losing your job or 
suffering any form of reprisal as a result.  The harassment or victimisation of anyone raising 
a genuine concern will be viewed as a disciplinary matter.

Of course we do not extend this assurance to someone who maliciously raises a matter they 
know is untrue.  

Your confidence

With these assurances, we hope you will raise your concern openly.  However, we recognise 
that there may be circumstances when you would prefer to speak to someone confidentially 
first.  If this is the case, please say so at the outset.  If you ask us not to disclose your 
identity, we will not do so without your consent unless required by law.  You should 
understand that there may be times when we are unable to resolve a concern without 
revealing your identity, for example where your personal evidence is essential.  In such 
cases, we will discuss with you whether and how the matter can best proceed.

Please remember that if you do not tell us who you are (and therefore you are raising a 
concern anonymously) it will be much more difficult for us to look into the matter.  We will 
not be able to protect your position or to give you feedback.  Accordingly you should not 
assume we can provide the assurances we offer in the same way if you report a concern 
anonymously.

If you are unsure about raising a concern you can get independent advice from Public 
Concern at Work (see contact details under Independent Advice below).

HOW TO RAISE A CONCERN INTERNALLY

Please remember that you do not need to have firm evidence of malpractice before raising a 
concern.  However, we do ask that you explain as fully as you can the information or 
circumstances that gave rise to your concern.

Some concerns may be resolved by agreed action without the need for investigation. If 
urgent action is required, this will be taken before any investigation is conducted.

Within ten working days of a concern being raised, the respondent will write to you:

Page 20

Agenda Item 4



 acknowledging that the concern has been received; 
 indicating how the Authority propose to deal with the matter; 
 giving an estimate of how long it will take to provide a final response;  
 informing whether any initial enquiries have been made; 
 supplying information on employee support mechanisms; and 
 stating whether further investigations will take place and if not, why not.

Step one

If you have a concern about malpractice, we hope you will feel able to raise it first with your 
manager or team leader.  This may be done verbally or in writing.  

Step two

If you feel unable to raise the matter with your manager, for whatever reason, please raise 
the matter with:

 Head of Corporate Legal Services on jill.coule@sefton.gov.uk or on 0151 934 2031

 Director of Corporate Services on graham.bayliss@sefton.gov.uk or on 0151 934 
4081

 Head of Corporate Personnel on mark.dale@sefton.gov.uk or on 0151 934 3949

 Head of Corporate Finance and ICT on margaret.rawding@sefton.gov.uk or on 
0151 934 4082

You can also submit a concern via the web reporting form. The above named people have 
been given special responsibility and training in dealing with whistleblowing concerns.

If you want to raise the matter confidentially, please let us know at the outset so that 
appropriate arrangements can be made.

Step three

If steps one and two have been followed and you still have concerns, or if you feel that the 
matter is so serious that you cannot discuss it with any of the above, please contact the 
Chief Executive on margaret.carney@sefton.gov.uk or on 0151 934 2057.

Page 21

Agenda Item 4

mailto:jill.coule@sefton.gov.uk
mailto:graham.bayliss@sefton.gov.uk
mailto:mark.dale@sefton.gov.uk
mailto:margaret.rawding@sefton.gov.uk
mailto:margaret.carney@sefton.gov.uk


HOW WE WILL HANDLE THE MATTER 

We will acknowledge receipt of your concern within 10 days. We will assess it and consider 
what action may be appropriate.  This may involve an informal review, an internal inquiry or 
a more formal investigation.  We will tell you who will be handling the matter, how you can 
contact them, and what further assistance we may need from you.  If you ask, we will write 
to you summarising your concern and setting out how we propose to handle it and provide 
a timetable for feedback.  If we have misunderstood the concern or there is any information 
missing, please let us know.

When you raise the concern it will be helpful to know how you think the matter might best 
be resolved.  If you have any personal interest in the matter, we do ask that you tell us at 
the outset.  If we think your concern falls more properly within our grievance, bullying and 
harassment or other relevant procedure, we will let you know.
 
Whenever possible, we will give you feedback on the outcome of any investigation.  Please 
note, however, that we may not be able to tell you about the precise actions we take where 
this would infringe a duty of confidence we owe to another person.

While we cannot guarantee that we will respond to all matters in the way that you might 
wish, we will strive to handle the matter fairly and properly.  By using this policy you will 
help us to achieve this.  

Occasionally it may be necessary to vary the time it takes to deal with matters.  Whilst staff 
will work hard to try to meet any deadlines where possible, if these are to be varied, then 
staff will liaise with you as appropriate.

If at any stage you experience reprisal, harassment or victimisation for raising a genuine 
concern, please contact the Head of Corporate Personnel mark.dale@sefton.gov.uk or on 
0151 934 3949. The Council will not tolerate any harassment or victimisation (including 
informal pressures) and will take appropriate action to protect employees when they raise a 
concern.

INDEPENDENT ADVICE 

If you are unsure whether to use this policy or you want confidential advice at any stage, 
you may contact the independent charity Public Concern at Work on 020 7404 6609 or by 
email at helpline@pcaw.org.uk.  Their lawyers can talk you through your options and help 
you raise a concern about malpractice at work.  

Page 22

Agenda Item 4

mailto:mark.dale@sefton.gov.uk
mailto:helpline@pcaw.org.uk


You can also contact your union (where applicable) for advice.

EXTERNAL CONTACTS 

While we hope this policy gives you the reassurance you need to raise your concern 
internally with us, we recognise that there may be circumstances where you can properly 
report a concern to an outside body.   It would be better for you to raise a concern with an 
appropriate regulator – such as the Financial Conduct Authority, the Health and Safety 
Executive, the Care Quality Commission - than not at all.   Public Concern at Work (or, if 
applicable, your union) will be able to advise you on such an option if you wish. 

If you are not satisfied, and if you feel it is right to take the matter outside the Council, the 
following are possible contact points:

 Public Concern at Work (0207 4046609 or http://www.pcaw.co.uk/);
 Ofsted (https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/ofsted)  
 the external auditor (www.pwc.co.uk);  
 The Commission for Local Administration (Local Government Ombudsman) (0300 

0610614 or http://www.lgo.org.uk/);
 Care Quality Commission (http://www.cqc.org.uk ) 
 a trade union; 
 the local Citizens Advice Bureau; 
 relevant professional bodies or regulatory organisations; 
 a relevant voluntary organisation; 
 the police  

MONITORING / OVERSIGHT

The Head of Corporate Legal Services, in her role as Monitoring Officer, has overall 
responsibility for the maintenance and operation of this policy. That officer maintains a 
record of concerns raised and the outcomes (but in a form which does not endanger 
confidentiality) and will report as necessary to the Council. The Monitoring Officer will 
endeavour to maintain a record of concerns which are raised both internally and externally. 
This will only be possible where the Monitoring Officer is made aware of those concerns.

Page 23

Agenda Item 4

http://www.pcaw.co.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/ofsted
http://www.pwc.co.uk/
http://www.lgo.org.uk/
http://www.cqc.org.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



www.pwc.co.uk Draft 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 101 Barbirolli Square, Lower Mosley Street, 
Manchester M2 3PW  
T: +44 (0) 161 245 2000 

 

 

Annual 
Certification 
Report 2013/14 
Sefton Metropolitan 
Borough Council 

 

 
Government and 
Public Sector – Annual 
Certification Report to 
those charged with 
governance. 
 
January 2015 

Page 25

Agenda Item 5



 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 101 Barbirolli Square, Lower Mosley Street, Manchester M2 3PW  
T: +44 (0) 161 245 2000 

 

 
 

The Members of the Audit Committee  
 
Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council 
Southport Town Hall, 
Lord Street, 
Southport, 
Merseyside, 

PR8 1DA 
 

 
27 January 2015 
 
Our Reference: IL/SMBC1314 
 
 
Ladies and Gentleman  
 
Annual Certification Report (2013/14)  
 
We are pleased to present out Annual Certification Report which provides members of the Audit 
committee with a high level overview of the results of the certification work we have undertaken at 
Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council for financial year ended 31 March 2014.  
 
We have also summarised our fees for 2013/14 certification work on page 6.  
 
Results of Certification Work 
 
For the period ended 31 March 2014, we certified two claims and returns worth a net total of 
£117,367,581.  Both of these claims were amended and both required qualification letters to set out 
the matters arising from the certification findings of the claim or return. We have set out further 
details within the report.  
 
We identified a number of matters relating to the Authority’s arrangements for the preparation of the 
relevant claims and return during the course of our work, some of which were minor in nature. The 
most important of these matters are brought to your attention in this report.  
 
We ask the Audit Committee to consider: 

 the adequacy of the proposed management action plan for 2013/14 set out in Appendix A; and  

 the adequacy of progress made by the Authority in implementing the prior year action plan in 
Appendix B.  

 
Going forward, with changes in the Audit Commission structure, only the Housing Benefit Subsidy 
claim will be subject to certification under the existing regime. All other requests for auditor 
assurance work for claims and returns will operate outside of these engagement arrangements. 
 
Yours faithfully,  
 
 
 
 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
 
 
 

Page 26

Agenda Item 5



Annual Certification Report 2013/14 to those charged with governance – Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council      

PwC  Page 3 of 13 

 

Table of Contents 

Introduction 4 

Scope of Work 4 

Statement of Responsibilities 4 

Results of Certification Work 5 

Claims and Returns certified 5 

Certification Fees 6 

Matters Arising 7 

Prior year recommendations 7 

Appendix A 8 

Management Action Plan: Current year issues (2013/14) 8 

Appendix B 11 

Management Action Plan: Prior year issues (2012/13) 11 

Glossary 12 

2013/14 Schemes applicable to the Authority under the Audit Commission Certification arrangements 12 

BEN01 Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim 12 

TRA11 Local Transport Plan: Major Projects 12 

Audit Commission Definitions for Certification work 13 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 27

Agenda Item 5



Annual Certification Report 2013/14 to those charged with governance – Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council      

PwC  Page 4 of 13 

 

 

Introduction  

Scope of Work 
Each year some grant-paying bodies may request certification by an appropriately qualified auditor, of claims 
and financial returns submitted to them by local authorities.  Certification arrangements are made by the Audit 
Commission under Section 28 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and is one for a grant-paying body to obtain 
assurance about an authority’s entitlement to grant or subsidy or about information provided within a return.  

Certification work is not an audit but a different type of assurance engagement which reaches a conclusion but 
does not express an opinion. This involves applying prescribed tests, as set out within Certification Instructions 
(CIs) issued to us by the Audit Commission; these are designed to provide reasonable assurance, for example, 
that claims and returns are fairly stated and in accordance with specified terms and conditions. The precise 
nature of work will vary according to the claim or return. 

Our role is to act as ‘agent’ of the Audit Commission when undertaking certification work. We are required to 
carry out workand complete an auditor certificate in accordance with the arrangements and requirements set by 
the Audit Commission.  

We also consider the results of certification work when performing other Code of Audit Practice work at the 
Authority, including our conclusions on the financial statements and value for money. 

International Standards on Auditing UK and Ireland (ISAs), the Auditing Practices Board’s Practice Note 10 
(Revised) and the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Practice do not apply to certification work. 

 

Statement of Responsibilities  
The Audit Commission publishes a ‘Statement of responsibilities of grant-paying bodies, authorities, the Audit 
Commission and appointed auditors in relation to claims and returns’ this is available from the Audit 
Commission website.  It summarises the Commission's framework for making certification arrangements and 
highlights the different responsibilities of grant-paying bodies, authorities, the Audit Commission and 
appointed auditors in relation to claims and returns. 

 

Page 28

Agenda Item 5



Annual Certification Report 2013/14 to those charged with governance – Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council      

PwC  Page 5 of 13 

 

 

Results of Certification Work 
 

Claims and Returns certified  
A summary of the claims and returns certified for financial year 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 is set out in the 
table below.  

The Audit Commission require that all matters arising are either amended for (where appropraite) or reported 
within a qualification letter.  

In two cases qualifiation letters were required to set out matters arising from the certification of the claim. Both 
claims were also amended following the certifiation work undertaken. The most important of these matters are 
summarised on page 7. 

All deadlines for authority submission of the claims were met. All deadlines for auditor certification were met.  

Fee information for the claims and returns is summarised on page 6.  

Summary: 
 

CI 
Reference 

Scheme 
Title 

Form Original 
Value  

Final Value Amendment Qualification  

BEN01 Housing 
Benefit 
Subisdy  

MPF720A £114,368,963 £114,367,303 Yes Yes 

TRA11 Local 
Transport 
Plan: major 
project – 
A5758 
Broom’s 
Cross Road 
(Thornton 
to Switch 
Island 
Link) 

S31 AUD 
Form 13-14 

£3,012,997 £3,000,278 Yes Yes 

 

  

 

Page 29

Agenda Item 5



Annual Certification Report 2013/14 to those charged with governance – Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council      

PwC  Page 6 of 13 

 

Certification Fees 

The fees for certification of each claim and return are set out below:- 
 

Claim/Return 2013/14 

Indicative 

Fee *  

2012/13 

Variation** 

2012/13  

Proposed 

Final Fee** 

2012/13 

Billed Fee 

 

Comment 

  

 £ £ £ £  

BEN01 Housing 

Benefit Subsidy  

13,851 0 15,610 15,610 Council Tax subsidy ceased in 

13/14 resulting in no 

requirement for auditor 

testing.  

TRA11 Local 

Transport plan: 

major projects 

2,951 0 0 0 This is a new scheme for 

2013/14. 

PEN05 

Teachers 

Pensions return 

0 0 2,820 2,820 This scheme was removed 

from Audit Commission 

arrangements for 2013/14 

LA01 National 

Non Domestic 

Rates 

0 0 5,220 5,220 This scheme was removed 

from Audit Commission 

arrangements for 2013/14 

Total  16,802 0 23,650 23,650  

 
These fees reflect the Council’s current performance and arrangements for certification. 

* Indicative fees may subsequently be updated for Audit Commission approved variations; for example where 
there was a change in the level of work required.  

** Fee variations which are pending Audit Commission approval.  

The Council can maintain and continue to improve its performance by:  

 continued review final claims / returns against supporting working papers to ensure there are no 
discrepancies prior to the Authority’s signature and provision to the grant paying body and PwC ;  

 continued review of guidance issued by the grant paying body in relation to the claim / return and 
completion; 

 ensuring the adequacy of evidence to support the claim / return entries; and  

 timely responses and provision of evidence where queries arise. 
 

We will continue to seek ways in which we can improve the overall level of liaison with senior officers regarding 
the progress of certification work, time and issues.  

At the same time, we welcome closer scrutiny by officers of any certification claims submitted to us for review 
and continued efforts to ensure that the quality of evidence available to support claims/returns is appropriate.  
The Council’s performance may also be improved by ensuring prior year qualification issues are reviewed and 
controls assessed to mitigate against similar errors occurring in future periods. 

 

Page 30

Agenda Item 5



Annual Certification Report 2013/14 to those charged with governance – Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council      

PwC  Page 7 of 13 

 

Matters Arising  

The most important matters we identified through our certification work are summarised below; further details 
can be found in Appendix A. 
 

BEN01 Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim 
Our testing identified a number of errors in relation to the Authority’s compliance with Housing and Benefit 
regulations. In a number of cases it was possible to quantify these errors and make appropriate amendments to 
the claim form.  

However, we also reported a number of matters to DWP in a qualification letter where no amendment could be 
agreed which would be representative of the whole population.   

In summary these matters related to:- 

 Errors found in the processing of child care costs; and 

 The use of bulk uprating for the Statutory Retirement Pension annual uplift. 

The second of these errors types has been identified and reported in previous years.  

The extended testing following our initial testing of benefit cases was performed this year by the Authority. We 
are pleased to report that this testing was of a good quality and reperformance of an element of this work could 
be relied upon.  

The potential loss of subsidy to the Authority as a result of our findings is an estimated net impact of £34. It 
should be noted that at the time of this report, we have not had sight of the final settlement details from DWP.  

Prior year recommendations 
We have reviewed the progress made by the Authority in implementing the certification action plan for 
2012/13; details can be found in Appendix B.  

TRA11 Local Transport Plan: Major Projects – A5758 Broom’s Cross Road Thornton to 
Switch Island Link (deadline 31 December 2013) 
Our testing identified a number of errors in relation to the Authority’s compliance with relevant guidance. In a 
number of cases it was possible to quantify these errors and make appropriate amendments to the claim form.  

However, we also reported one issue to DfT in a qualification letter where no amendment could be agreed 
which would be representative of the whole population and so the error was not amended for. 

In summary this related to; 

 Expenditure that was included in the Authority’s S31 AUD Form for which there is no supporting 
evidence available to confirm that it complies with the CI Test 08 requirements. 

The potential impact of this error is that the Authority has over claimed by £58 in 2013/14. 

Page 31

Agenda Item 5



Annual Certification Report 2013/14 to those charged with governance – Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council      

PwC  Page 8 of 13 

 

Appendix A  
 

Management Action Plan: Current year issues (2013/14)  
 

BEN01 Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim (deadline 30 November 2014) 
Issue Recommendation Management response Responsibility 

(Implementation 
date) 

Incorrect Processing of 
Child Care Costs 

 

Testing of the initial sample 
identified two cases (total 
values= £1,257.61) where the 
authority had entered the 
incorrect child care costs into 
the benefit calculation. 

 One case had an Error 
Type 1 (Benefit 
Underpaid) 

 One case had an Error 
Type 3 (Benefit 
overpaid) 

Because errors miscalculating 
the claimant’s child care costs 
could result in overpayments an 
additional random sample of 40 
cases were tested from the sub-
population of child care cost 
cases. 

This additional testing did not 
identify any further 
misstatements of benefit. 

The extrapolated error reported 
in the qualification letter was 
£34. 

The authority should 
review the area which 
has led to matters 
within the 
qualification letter to 
prevent similar 
occurrences in future 
years. 

 

Suggestions for 
improvement include; 

 

 The continued 
review of assessors 
work should focus 
on the treatment of 
child care costs 
identified during 
the certification 
process. 

 Conduct refresher 
training for 
assessors in the 
treatment of child 
care costs. 

 

A procedure note has been 
redrafted regarding the 
treatment of child care 
costs for housing benefit.   

D Turner (Benefits 
Manager) will be 
completed by 
23.02.2015 

Parameter Upratings 

 

The authority applies a bulk 
uprating for the percentage 
increase to be applied to State 
Retirement Pension (SRP) 
parameters in Northgate in line 
with the Circular A2/2013, 
however this is not always a true 
reflection of how the income 

The Authority should 
continue to work with 
Northgate to ensure 
the most accurate 
method for applying 
the upratings is 
applied. 

This exercise will be 
undertaken each year by 
Project Team 
implementing yearend 
updates. 

M Barry (Revenues 
Manager) March 
2015 and on-
going. 

Page 32

Agenda Item 5



Annual Certification Report 2013/14 to those charged with governance – Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council      

PwC  Page 9 of 13 

 

based SRP increases annually. 
Sample testing is performed by 
officers to confirm that the 
percentage has been accurately 
applied. We have reported this 
issue since 2011/12 (previous 2 
years) and there are some cases 
where the cumulative impact of 
the upraters applied has 
resulted in underpayments of 
benefit as the authority always 
applies the highest % increase to 
minimise the impact on 
claimants. The authority is 
unable to quantify the total 
misstatement and in 2013/14 
we tested two cases with SRP 
income and we did not identify 
any issues to report, however in 
2012/13 we identified and 
reported an underpayment of 
benefit in case 0205648A 
(£39.74).  

 

Non-HRA Rent Rebates 

 

Initial testing identified one 
overpayment of value £108 that 
had been incorrectly classified 
as a technical error when it 
should have been included as an 
LA error. 

We extended the testing to the 
rest of the population of the 
relevant cell and were able to 
isolate and quantify the error as 
£108 and the claim was 
amended. 

 

Ensure any 
overpayments 
classified as technical 
in the claim form meet 
the requirements of 
the HB regulations. 

Part of quality checks by 
Benefits Subsidy Team 

D Turner (Benefits 
Manager) on-
going. 

 
 

TRA11 Local Transport Plan: Major Projects – A5758 Broom’s Cross Road Thornton to 
Switch Island Link (deadline 31 December 2013) 
Issue Recommendation Management response Responsibility 

(Implementation 
date) 

Retention of Supporting 
Documentation 

 

In 2013/14, expenditure 
amounting to £57.75 was 
included in the Authority’s S31 
AUD Form for which there was 
no supporting evidence 
available to confirm that it 

The Authority needs to 
ensure that it is not 
claiming for 
expenditure that 
cannot be 
substantiated or 
evidenced by retaining 
all supporting evidence 
for the project. 

Pre development 

expenditure only becomes 
eligible once the scheme 
construction phase starts. 
These costs date back to 
2009 and were 50% 
eligible but documentary 
evidence could not be 

S Birch/ S Howard 

Immediate 

Page 33

Agenda Item 5



Annual Certification Report 2013/14 to those charged with governance – Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council      

PwC  Page 10 of 13 

 

complies with the CI Test 08 
requirements. It was confirmed 
with the Authority that the 
amount related to expenditure 
incurred on vehicle hire for a 
site visit in July 2009 however 
the Authority’s detailed vehicle 
hire records do not date back 
that far.  

 

 

found for the internal 
vehicle hire. In future all 
evidence of eligible 
expenditure will be 
retained. 

 

Eligibility of Expenditure 

 

Initial Part B testing identified 
one item of expenditure that 
had been claimed for in error as 
it was not eligible. 

The sample was extended to test 
all items in the relevant cost 
centre population and an 
additional 3 ineligible items 
were identified. The total value 
of these items was £12,719. 

The total error was quantified 
and the claim form amended. 

 

 

 

 

The authority should 
ensure that only 
eligible expenditure is 
included within the 
relevant sections of the 
claim form to ensure 
they do not over claim 
on the project. 

 

Suggestions for 
improvement include; 

 Regular review 
of the project 
cost centres to 
ensure only 
eligible 
expenditure is 
being coded. 

 Additional 
refresher 
training on the 
eligible criteria 
set out in the 
business case 
for the project. 

 

 

Pre development 
expenditure only becomes 
eligible once the scheme 
construction phase starts. 
These costs date back to 
2009/10 and were 
inadvertently classed as 
50% eligible on the 
2013/14 claim rather than 
being classed as scheme 
costs that should be 100% 
funded by Sefton. Regular 
reviews of the project cost 
centres are carried out and 
will be maintained in the 
future to ensure only 
eligible costs are claimed. 

 

S Birch/ S Howard 

Immediate 

 

Page 34

Agenda Item 5



Annual Certification Report 2013/14 to those charged with governance – Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council      

PwC  Page 11 of 13 

 

 

Appendix B 
 

Management Action Plan: Prior year issues (2012/13)  
 

For 2013/14 under Audit Commission certification arrangements, the following schemes did not apply: 

 LA01 National Non Domestic Rates 

 PEN05 Teachers Pensions Return 

 
Alternative arrangements may have been entered into directly between the grant paying bodies and assurance 
practitioners, however for the purposes of this report, which is focused on Audit Commission certification work, 
these schemes have been excluded. The only action included in the prior year report related to the LA01 return 
and therefore on this basis this issue has been excluded from the action plan.  

Page 35

Agenda Item 5



 

This document has been prepared only for Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council and solely for the purpose and on the 
terms agreed with Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council in our agreement. 
We accept no liability (including for negligence) to anyone else in connection with this document, and it may not be 
provided to anyone else. 
© 2015 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. All rights reserved. In this document, "PwC" refers to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
(a limited liability partnership in the United Kingdom), which is a member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers International 
Limited, each member firm of which is a separate legal entity. 

Glossary  

2013/14 Schemes applicable to the Authority under the Audit 
Commission Certification arrangements 
 

BEN01 Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim 
Local authorities responsible for administering statutory housing benefit (HB) of rent rebates to tenants of a 
local authority and rent allowances to private tenants; claim subsidy from the Department for Work and 
Pensions (DWP). With the exception of certain areas of benefit spending where authorities have the most scope 
to monitor and control costs, subsidy is paid at the full rate of 100 per cent of expenditure incurred. 

  

TRA11 Local Transport Plan: Major Projects  
The Department for Transport (DfT) pays grants under section 31 of the Local Government Act 2003, to local 
transport authorities in England. The grant supports major projects such as large public transport 
infrastructure or road construction schemes. 
 
 

Page 36

Agenda Item 5



 

This document has been prepared only for Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council and solely for the purpose and on the 
terms agreed with Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council in our agreement. 
We accept no liability (including for negligence) to anyone else in connection with this document, and it may not be 
provided to anyone else. 
© 2015 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. All rights reserved. In this document, "PwC" refers to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
(a limited liability partnership in the United Kingdom), which is a member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers International 
Limited, each member firm of which is a separate legal entity. 

Audit Commission Definitions for Certification work 

Abbreviations used in certification work are:-  

‘appointed auditor’ is the auditor appointed by the Audit 

Commission under section 3 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 to 

audit an authority’s accounts who, for the purpose of certifying 

claims and returns under section 28 of the Act, acts as an agent of 

the Commission. In this capacity, whilst qualified to act as an 

independent external auditor, the appointed auditor acts as a 

professional accountant undertaking an assurance engagement 

governed by the Commission’s certification instruction 

arrangements; 

‘claims’ includes claims for grant or subsidies and for contractual 

payments due under agency agreements, co-financing schemes or 

otherwise; 

‘assurance engagement’ is an engagement performed by a 

professional accountant in which a subject matter that is the 

responsibility of another party is evaluated or measured against 

identified suitable criteria, with the objective of expressing a 

conclusion that provides the intended user with reasonable 

assurance about that subject matter; 

‘Commission’ refers to either the Audit Commission or the 

Grants Team of the Audit Policy and Regulation Directorate of the 

Commission which is responsible for making certification 

arrangements and for all liaison with grant-paying bodies and 

auditors on certification issues; 

 

‘auditor’ is a person carrying out the detailed checking of claims 

and returns on behalf of the appointed auditor, in accordance with 

the Commission’s and appointed auditor’s scheme of delegation; 

‘grant-paying bodies’ includes government departments, 

public authorities, directorates and related agencies, requiring 

authorities to complete claims and returns; 

‘authorities’ means all bodies whose auditors are appointed 

under the Audit Commission Act 1998, which have requested the 

certification of claims and returns under section 28(1) of that Act; 

‘returns’ are either: 

- returns in respect of grant which do not constitute a claim, 

for example, statements of expenditure from which the 

grant-paying body may determine grant entitlement; or 

- returns other than those in respect of grant, which must or 

may be certified by the appointed auditor, or under 

arrangements made by the Commission; 

‘certification instructions’ (‘CIs’) are written instructions 

from the Commission to appointed auditors on the certification of 

claims and returns; 

‘Statement’ is the Statement of responsibilities of grant-paying 

bodies, authorities, the Audit Commission and appointed auditors 

in relation to claims and returns, available from www.audit-

commission.gov.uk; 

‘certify’ means the completion of the certificate on a claim or 

return by the appointed auditor in accordance with arrangements 

made by the Commission; 

‘underlying records’ are the accounts, data and other working 

papers supporting entries on a claim or return. 

 

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



www.pwc.co.uk

Sefton Metropolitan
Borough Council
External Audit Plan 2014/15

Presented to those charged with Governance
Government and
Public Sector

For Audit
Committee - March
2015

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council PwC  Contents

Code of Audit Practice and

Statement of Responsibilities

of Auditors and of Audited

Bodies

In April 2010 the Audit Commission

issued a revised version of the

‘Statement of responsibilities of

auditors and of audited bodies’. It is

available from the Chief Executive

of each audited body. The purpose

of the statement is to assist auditors

and audited bodies by explaining

where the responsibilities of

auditors begin and end and what is

to be expected of the audited body in

certain areas. Our reports and

management letters are prepared in

the context of this Statement.

Reports and letters prepared by

appointed auditors and addressed

to members or officers are prepared

for the sole use of the audited body

and no responsibility is taken by

auditors to any Member or officer

in their individual capacity or to

any third party.

Executive summary 2

Audit approach 3

Risk of fraud 14

Your PwC team 16

Your audit fees 17

Appendix A: Independence threats and safeguards 19

Appendix B: Communications Plan 20

Appendix C: Audit quality 21

Appendix D: Other engagement information 25

Contents

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council PwC  2

Background
We have prepared this audit plan to provide the Audit
Committee of Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council (the
‘Authority’) with information about our responsibilities as
external auditors and how we plan to discharge them for the
audit of the financial year ended 31 March 2015.

Framework for our audit
We are appointed as your auditors by the Audit Commission
as part of a national framework contract and consequently
we are required to incorporate the requirements of the Audit
Commission Act 1998 and the Code of Audit Practice 2010
for local government bodies (the ‘Audit Code’) as well as the
requirements of International Standards on Auditing (UK &
Ireland) (‘ISAs’).

The remainder of this document sets out how we will
discharge these responsibilities. We welcome any feedback or
comments that you may have on our approach.

We look forward to discussing our report with you on 25th

March 2015. Attending the meeting from PwC will be Ian
Looker and Richard Thomas.

Our Responsibilities
Our responsibilities are as follows:

Perform an audit of the accounts in accordance with the
Auditing Practice Board’s International Standards on Auditing
(ISAs (UK&I)).

Report to the National Audit Office on the accuracy of the
consolidation pack the Authority is required to prepare for the
Whole of Government Accounts.

Form a conclusion on the arrangements the Authority has
made for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources.

Consider the completeness of disclosures in the Authority’s
annual governance statement, identify any inconsistencies with
the other information of which we are aware from ourwork
and consider whether it complies with CIPFA / SOLACE
guidance.

Consider whether, in the public interest, we should make a
report on any matter coming to our notice in the course of the
audit.

Determine whether any other action should be taken in relation
to our other responsibilities under the Audit Commission Act.

Issue a certificate that we have completed the audit in
accordance with the requirements of the Audit Commission Act
1998 and the Code of Practice issued by the Audit Commission.

Executive summary

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council PwC  3

The PwC Audit

Smart + Smart + Smart = The PwC Audit
People Approach Technology

Our unique methodology involves our people, a tailored audit approach and our use of technology. Our ‘smart’ approach
underpins your audit. The core elements of our audit are outlined below:

Client acceptance & independence
Our audit engagement begins with an evaluation of the Authority on our ‘acceptance & continuance system’ which highlights
an overall engagement risk score and highlights areas of heightened risk.

Audit approach
Our audit engagement begins
with an evaluation of the
Authority on our ‘acceptance
& continuance database’
which highlights an overall
engagement risk score and
highlights areas of
heightened risk.

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council PwC  4

At the beginning of our audit process we are also required to assess our independence as your external auditor. We have made
enquiries of all PwC teams providing services to you and of those responsible in the UK Firm for compliance matters and there
are no matters which we perceive may impact our independence and objectivity of the audit team

At the date of this plan we confirm that in our professional judgement, we are independent accountants with respect to the
Authority, within the meaning of UK regulatory and professional requirements and that the objectivity of the audit team is not
impaired.

Refer to Appendix A for more detail of how we have addressed this.

Deep business understanding
Strategic context
The Authority is operating in an increasingly challenging environment where many Local Government organisations are
facing a continued reduction in funding from central government and increasing demand for their services, in particular in
relation to social care. Given the period of sustained savings made by the Council, potential future political change, change in
demographics and for the Council the emphasis on social care, as we look forward the challenge becomes more difficult. Such
financial and service risks impact on both our responsibilities surrounding the audit of the financial statements and value for
money.

Our risks identified later in this section have been considered in the above context.

Relevant risks
Our audit is risk based which means that we focus on the areas that matter. We have carried out a risk assessment for 2014/15
prior to considering the impact of controls, as required by auditing standards, which also draws on our understanding of your
business.

We determine if risks are significant, elevated or normal and whether we are concerned with fraud, error or judgement as this
helps to drive the design of our testing procedures:

 Significant Those risks with the highest potential for material misstatement due to a combination of their size, nature and
likelihood and which, in our judgement, require specific audit consideration.

 Elevated Although not considered significant, the nature of the balance/area requires specific consideration.

The table below highlights all risks which we consider to be either significant or elevated in relation to our audit for the year
ended 31 March 2015.

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council PwC  5

Financial Statement Considerations

Risk Categorisation Audit approach

Management override of controls

ISA (UK&I) 240 requires that we plan our
audit work to consider the risk of fraud,
which is presumed to be a significant risk in
any audit. In every organisation,
management may be in a position to
override the routine day to day financial
controls. Accordingly, for all of our audits,
we consider this risk and adapt our audit
procedures accordingly.

Due to the current economic climate there is
an increased risk regarding the manipulation
of the financial accounts to improve financial
position.

In our experience, management override
typically relates to manipulation of the
financial statements through manual
journals, and as such we perform targeted
work on those manual journals.

It can also relate to unusually aggressive or
prudent accounting estimates and
assessment of accounting for income or
expenditure in future periods rather than the
current period.

Significant  As part of our assessment of your control environment we
will consider those areas where management could use
discretion outside of the financial controls in place to
misstate the financial statements.

We will perform procedures to:

- Review the appropriateness of accounting policies and
estimation bases, focusing on any changes not driven by
amendments to reporting standards;

- Test the appropriateness of journal entries and other year-
end adjustments, targeting higher risk items such as those
that affect the reported deficit/surplus;

- Review accounting estimates for bias and evaluate
whether judgment and estimates used are reasonable (for
example pension scheme assumptions, valuation and
impairment assumptions);

- Evaluate the business rationale underlying significant
transactions outside the normal course of business; and

- Perform unpredictable procedures targeted on fraud risks.

We may perform other audit procedures if necessary.

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council PwC  6

Risk Categorisation Audit approach

Risk of fraud in revenue and expenditure
recognition

Under ISA (UK&I) 240 there is a
presumption that there are risks of fraud in
revenue recognition.

We extend this presumption to the
recognition of expenditure in local
government.

Revenue

Council Tax: The income is predictable as
it is dependent upon the number of
properties in the borough and the Council
Tax charge for each property.

Business Rates: The income is predictable
as it is dependent upon business rate
multipliers set by the government prior to
the start of the year and the rateable value of
properties attracting business rates in the
borough.

Given the nature of these items a large
proportion of these transactions would need
to be incorrect for material misstatement to
arise. Therefore we have rebutted the
significant risk of fraud in revenue
recognition. We have not rebutted this risk
for all of the other income streams of the
council note CT benefits and NNDR benefits
are not included in the above rebuttal

Expenditure

This risk is most likely to materialise in
significant areas on non-payroll expenditure
or areas where accounting judgements or
estimates are made, there is also a risk of
expenditure being inappropriately
capitalised. Given the above this risk is less
likely to materialise in payroll.

Significant  We will obtain an understanding of revenue and
expenditure controls.
We will evaluate and test the accounting policy for income
and expenditure recognition to ensure that this is
consistent with the requirements of the Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting.
We will also perform detailed testing of revenue and
expenditure transactions, focussing on the areas we
consider to be of greatest risk.
We will perform controls testing over payroll processing
and standing data.

We will test the appropriateness of journal entries and
other adjustments.

We will review accounting estimates for revenue and
expenditure, for example provisions.

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council PwC  7

Risk Categorisation Audit approach

Valuation of properties

Property, Plant and Equipment is the largest
figure on the Balance Sheet.

Economic conditions continue to be
uncertain, which has a potential impact
upon the valuation of your property, plant
and equipment.

ISA s (UK&I) 500 and 540 require us to
undertake certain procedures on the use of
valuers, processes and assumptions
underlying fair value estimates.

Specific areas of risk include:

 The accuracy and completeness of
detailed information on assets.

 Whether the Authority’s assumptions
underlying the classification of
properties are appropriate.

 The valuer’s methodology, assumptions
and underlying data, and our access to
these.

Elevated Where asset valuations are undertaken in –year we will:

 Agree the source data used by your valuer to
supporting records;

 Assess the work of your valuer through use of our
own internal specialists where required; and

 Agree the outputs to your Fixed Asset Register and
Accounts.

Where any changes to the valuation bases are proposed we
will work with you to understand and evaluate the rationale
you are using on a timely basis.

Where assets are not re-valued in year, we will review your
impairment assessment, and evaluate whether your assets
are held at an appropriate value in your accounts at the
year-end.

We will also consider the inclusion of any notional finance
costs in the valuation of buildings in line with CIPFA
guidance.

Contaminated Land Reserve

In 2011/12 the council identified a stretch of
Crosby beach that has levels of asbestos on
the coast line. Since then the Council has
continued to perform air sampling tests to
identify if there is a health risk. Although to
date no health risk has been identified by the
testing, the recent storms led to some
damage of the coastline. It is possible that
future storm damage could release visible
fibrous asbestos that would require rapid
clean up.

Elevated We will review the current position of the contamination to
gain an understanding of the Council’s current obligations.
We will review the accounting treatment of any potential
costs that the Council may face as a result of the
contamination.

P
age 46

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council PwC  8

Risk Categorisation Audit approach

Savings targets – Going Concern

The Council is experiencing increased
pressures on many of its budgets in the
current economic climate and savings
continue to be required, with a further £55m
expected over 2015/16 and 2016/17.

Budget holders therefore may feel under
pressure to move costs between periods, or
to miscode expenditure to make use of
resources intended for different purposes.

Elevated We will review the council’s budget monitoring processes to
identify any areas of concern. We will also consider these
risks when carrying out cut-off testing.

As part of our value for money conclusion and in
conjunction with our work on the financial standing, we
will consider the robustness of a number of the Council’s
savings targets.

We will also consider the accounting implications of any
savings plans and would welcome early discussion of any
new or unusual proposals. In particular, we will consider
the impact of the efficiency challenge on the recognition of
both revenue and expenditure.

New guidance to note: Normal Risk

VA Schools

During December 2014, LAAP bulletin 101 was released which focuses on the accounting treatment of non-current assets used
by schools. The guidance covers those assets that are used by Voluntary Aided (VA), Voluntary Controlled and Foundation
Schools. This change to guidance provides further clarity and control tests to assess if the Council has control over the assets
and as such should include them within their balance sheet.

Given this the Council need to review the non-current assets held by any of the above mentioned schools and undertake the
control tests outlined in LAAP bulletin 101 on an asset by asset basis to see if the control test is passed. Initial assessment by
management indicates that the assets are used under license from religious bodies and it is not initially felt that the control
test is met.

We will review the completed assessment undertaken by management and to ensure that these assets are appropriately
accounted for.

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council PwC  9

Value for Money Considerations

Risk Categorisation Audit approach

Financial resilience

In 2013/14 the guidance surrounding
financial resilience was extended to note
“Given the continuing pressures on funding,
auditors should consider whether the body
has appropriate arrangements to plan to
secure and maintain its financial resilience
in the medium term.” In this scenario
medium term is defined as the length of the
medium term financial plan.

We recognise that the Council has previously
successfully delivered around £115m of
savings and a further £55m is required over
the next two years, of which plans were
recently approved.

Given the magnitude of the continued
challenge against the current economic
environment we continue to continue to
believe that this represents a significant risk.

Significant  Our approach will include the following:

 Assess the Council against recommended practice
set out by the Audit Commission for ensuring
Financial Governance, Financial Control and
Financial Planning;

 Review and challenge the historical budget
process and performance of the Council;

 Review historical financial performance in
2014/15 against planned budget;

 Understand and challenge the budgetary setting
process for the Medium Term Financial Plan.

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council PwC  10

Intelligent scoping
Materiality

£

Overall materiality 12,802,540

Clearly trivial reporting de minimis 50,000

We set overall materiality to assist our planning of the overall
audit strategy and to assess the impact of any adjustments
identified.

Overall materiality has been set at 2% of expenditure for the
year ended 31 March 2015. We will update this assessment as
necessary in light of the Authority’s actual results.

ISA (UK&I) 450 (revised) requires that we record all
misstatements identified except those which are “clearly
trivial” i.e. those which we do expect not to have a material
effect on the financial statements even if accumulated. We
would like to seek the Audit Committee’s views on this de
minimis threshold.

Overall
Materiality:
£12,803k

Triviality: £50k

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council PwC  11

Robust Testing
Where we do our work
As previously mentioned our audit is risk based which means
we focus our work on those areas which, in our judgement,
are most likely to lead to a material misstatement. In
summary, we will:

 Consider the key risks arising from internal
developments and external factors such as policy,
regulatory or accounting changes;

 Consider the robustness of the control environment,
including the governance structure, the operating
environment, the information systems and processes
and the financial reporting procedures in operation;

 Understand the control activities operating over key
financial cycles which affect the production of the year-
end financial statements;

 Validate key controls relevant to the audit approach; and
 Perform substantive testing on transactions and

balances as required.

Specifically at Sefton we will also:

 Perform IT General controls around key finance
systems;

 Review the results of the auditors work at Sefton New
Directions; and

 Consider IT and control changes following Council Tax
benefit reforms.

When we do our work
Our audit is designed to quickly consider and evaluate the
impact of issues arising to ensure that we deliver a no
surprises audit at year-end. This involves early testing at an
interim stage and open and timely communication with
management to ensure that we meet all statutory reporting
deadlines. We engage early, enabling us to debate issues with

you. We have summarised our formal communications plan
in Appendix B.

Specifically at Sefton we will also:

Work with the Council to increase the efficiency of the
accounts closedown and audit process.

In 2014/15 this will involve:

 Review of the audit closedown timetable, to provide
feedback and potential areas for improvement; and

 Work with management to bring work forward as
part of our interim process and also bring forward
our year end audit commencement.

In 2014/15 we will continue to work with the Council to
further enhance the process learning from the changes
implemented in 2013/14.

Value for Money Work
Our value for money code responsibility requires us to carry
out sufficient and relevant work in order to conclude on
whether the Authority has put in place proper arrangements
to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of
resources.

The Audit Commission guidance includes two criteria:

 The organisation has proper arrangements in place for
securing financial resilience; and

 The organisation has proper arrangements for
challenging how it secures economy, efficiency and
effectiveness.

We determine a local programme of audit work based on our
audit risk assessment, informed by these criteria and our
statutory responsibilities. In 2014/15 our approach will

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council PwC  12

include consideration (limited to the scope of our work) of
the following:

1. Consideration of sector specific risks identified by
the Audit Commission;

2. Review of the performance of the Council against the
financial analysis tool;

3. Review of the outputs from the VFM tool produced
by the Audit Commission;

4. Review and consideration of findings from minute
review of council meetings and consideration of any
news articles from local and national press;

5. Consideration of financial resilience, financial
planning and financial control. This has also been
enhanced by our going concern review in relation to
the Council.

6. Consideration of resources provided and improving
efficiency and productivity.

In 2013/14, the guidance surrounding financial resilience
was extended to note “However, given the continuing
pressures on funding, auditors should consider whether the
body has appropriate arrangements to plan to secure and
maintain its financial resilience in the medium term.” In this
scenario medium term is defined as the length of the Medium
Term Financial Plan (‘MTFP’). Therefore our review will
cover the full term of the MTFP.

Financial Performance

Prior to signing off the Statement of Accounts we will review
the 2015/16 budgets and savings plans in order to assess
whether the Council has taken appropriate steps to confirm
that it is appropriate to prepare the annual report and
accounts on a going concern basis.

As part of our audit programme we are required to consider
whether there are any events or conditions that may cast

significant doubt on the Council’s ability to continue as a
going concern. As part of this work, we will consider:

1. the financial position of the Council as at 31 March
2015; and

2. The assumptions used by management in developing
the budget for 2015/16.

We determine a local programme of audit work based on our
audit risk assessment, informed by these criteria and our
statutory responsibilities.

Annual Governance Statement
Local Authorities are required to produce an Annual
Governance Statement (AGS), which is consistent with
guidance issued by CIPFA / SOLACE: “Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government”. The AGS is required to be
presented by the Authority with the Statement of Accounts.

We will review the AGS to consider whether it complies with
the CIPFA / SOLACE “Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government” framework and whether it is misleading or
inconsistent with other information known to us from our
audit work.

Whole of Government Accounts
We are required to examine the Whole of Government
Accounts schedules submitted to the Department for
Communities and Local Government and issue an opinion
stating in our view if they are consistent or inconsistent with
the Statement of Accounts.

Meaningful conclusions
We believe fundamentally in the value of the audit and that
audits need to be designed to be valuable to our clients to
properly fulfil our role as auditors.

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council PwC  13

In designing the Authority audit, our primary objective is to
form an independent audit opinion on the financial
statements; however, we also aim to provide insight.

Audit value comes from the same source as audit quality so
the work that we do in support of our audit opinion also
means that we should be giving you value through our
observations, recommendations and insights. We will share

insights and observations with you in our audit reports
throughout the year.

We have also developed a Local Government Centre of
Excellence which supports your audit team in all aspects of
the audit, including sharing insight and observations gained
from audit teams across the country.

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council PwC  14

International Standards on Auditing (UK&I) state that we, as auditors, are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that
the financial statements taken as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. The
respective responsibilities of auditors, management and those charged with governance are summarised below:

Auditors’ responsibility Management’s responsibility Responsibility of the Audit Committee

Our objectives are:

 To identify and assess the risks of
material misstatement of the
financial statements due to fraud;

 To obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the
assessed risks of material
misstatement due to fraud, through
designing and implementing
appropriate responses; and

 To respond appropriately to fraud
or suspected fraud identified during
the audit.

Management’s responsibilities in relation to
fraud are:

 To design and implement programmes
and controls to prevent, deter and
detect fraud;

 To ensure that the entity’s culture and
environment promote ethical
behaviour; and

 To perform a risk assessment that
specifically includes the risk of fraud
addressing incentives and pressures,
opportunities, and attitudes
and rationalisation.

Your responsibility as part of your
governance role is:

 To evaluate management’s
identification of fraud risk,
implementation of anti-fraud
measures and creation of
appropriate ‘tone at the top’; and

 To ensure any alleged or suspected
instances of fraud brought to your
attention are investigated
appropriately.

Risk of fraud

There is a risk of fraud in any

organisation. Here we set out

the responsibilities of the

relevant parties in relation to

fraud.

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council PwC  15

Conditions under which fraud may occur

Your views on fraud
We enquire of the Audit Committee:

 Whether you have knowledge of fraud, either actual, suspected or alleged, including those involving management?
 What fraud detection or prevention measures (e.g. whistleblower lines) are in place in the entity?
 What role you have in relation to fraud?
 What protocols / procedures have been established between those charged with governance and management to keep you

informed of instances of fraud, either actual, suspected or alleged?

Management or other employees have
an incentive or are under pressure

Circumstances exist
that provide opportunity –
ineffective or absent control,
or management ability to
override controls

Culture or environment
enables management to

rationalise committing fraud
– attribute or values of those

involved, or pressure that
enables them rationalise

committing a dishonest act

Incentive pressure

Opportunity

Rationalisation /
attitude

Why commit
fraud?

P
age 54

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council PwC  16

The individuals in your PwC team have been selected to bring you extensive audit experience from working with Local
Authorities, the wider public sector and the commercial sector. We also recognise that continuity in the audit team is
important to you and the senior members of our team are committed to developing longer term relationships with you.

The core members of your audit team are:

Audit Team Responsibilities

Engagement Leader

Ian Looker

ian.looker@uk.pwc.com

0113 288 2019

Engagement Leader responsible for independently delivering the audit in line with the Audit
Code (including agreeing the Audit Plan, ISA 260 Report to Those Charged with Governance
and the Annual Audit Letter), quality of outputs and signing of opinions and conclusions.

Engagement Senior Manager

Richard Thomas

richard.d.thomas@uk.pwc.com

0113 289 4348

Engagement Manager

Jerri Lewis

Jerri.lewis@uk.pwc.com
0151 244 1117

Manager on the assignment responsible for overall control of the audit engagement,
ensuring delivery to timetable, delivery and management of targeted work and overall
review of audit outputs. Completion of the Audit Plan, ISA 260 Report and Annual Audit
Letter.

Team Leader

Ben Byers

ben.d.byers@uk.pwc.com

07729 424561

Responsible for leading the field team, including the audit of the statement of accounts, and
governance aspects of our work. Regular liaison with the finance team.

Your PwC team

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council PwC  17

The Audit Commission has provided indicative scale fees for
Local Authorities for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Our indicative audit fee, as agreed in our updated audit fee
letter dated 17th February 2015, compared to the actual fee
for 2013/14 is as follows:

Audit fee Actual
fee

2013/14

£

Indicative
fee

2014/15

£

Audit work performed under the Code of
Audit Practice

- Statement of Accounts

- Conclusion on the ability of the organisation
to secure proper arrangements for the economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources

- Whole of Government Accounts

171,263* 169,196

Certification of Claims and Returns 16,802 13,730

Total Audit Code work 188,065 182,926

Planned non-audit work

Total fees (audit and non-audit work) 188,065 184,896

We have based the fee level on the following assumptions:

 Officers meeting the timetable of deliverables, which we
will agree in writing;

 We are able to use, as planned, the work of internal
audit;

 We do not review more than 3 iterations of the
statement of accounts;

 We are able to obtain assurance from your management
controls;

 No significant changes being made by the Audit
Commission to the local value for money work
requirements; and

 Our value for money conclusion and accounts opinion
being unqualified.

If these prove to be unfounded, we will seek a variation order
to the agreed fee, to be discussed and agreed in advance with
you and the Audit Commission.

* Note our fee for 2013/14 included £3,537 as agreed with the

Audit Commission and the Council for additional work

undertaken in relation to:

 Change in scope of the work surrounding the certification

of BEN01 and the removal of LA01, leading to additional

work being undertaken through the external audit where

previously reliance could have been placed on the audit

of these certifications; and

 Additional work required following the localisation of

Council tax benefit.

In 2014/15 the Audit Commission have recognised the

additional work required by the auditors in relation to the

removal of LA01 and have as such increased the scale fee to

£169,196 to recognise the additional work that is required by

auditors. However, the Commission have not included any

additional scale fee for the additional work required in

relation to BEN01, in 2013/14 this equated to £1,196 we will

discuss the fee impact of this with the Council for the current

year.

Your audit fees

P
age 56

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council PwC  18

Appendices

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council PwC  19

At the beginning of our audit process we are required to assess our independence as your external auditor. We have made
enquiries of all PwC teams providing services to you and of those responsible in the UK Firm for compliance matters and there
are no matters which we perceive may impact our independence and objectivity of the audit team.

Relationships and Investments
Senior officers should not seek or receive personal financial or tax advice from PwC. Non-executives who receive such advice
from us (perhaps in connection with employment by a client of the firm) or who also act as director for another audit or
advisory client of the firm should notify us, so that we can put appropriate conflict management arrangements in place.

Therefore at the date of this plan we confirm that in our professional judgement, we are independent accountants with respect
to the Authority, within the meaning of UK regulatory and professional requirements and that the objectivity of the audit team
is not impaired.

Non audit work undertaken
We carry out a rigorous assessment of our independence in our planning, execution and completion stages of the audit,
carefully assessing any potential threats to independence from the non-audit work we undertake for Sefton Council. We report
all non-audit work undertaken at the Audit Committee meeting and ensure that our acceptance procedures consider Sefton
Council’s own authorisation policies with respect to this work. Below we note the threats and safeguards in place for the non-
audit work that we have undertaken for Sefton Council in the year.

Support provided
by PwC

Value The most significant
threats to
independence

Safeguards in place

Teachers Pension
Certification

£4k Management

Self-Review

Advocacy

a) We have made management clear of their responsibility under our terms of
engagement and they will evaluate and conclude upon the results of our work;

b) We are certifying management completed grant returns and claims, we are not
completing these on behalf of management.

c) We will not be acting for, or alongside, management.

Appendix A: Independence threats and
safeguards

P
age 58

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council PwC  20

Appendix B: Communications Plan
Planning (January - March)
Discussion of business risks with
key management and plan detailed
audit approach
Detailed planning meetings with
Finance, HR and IT.
Audit strategy and timetable
agreed with management
Presentation of the
audit strategy to those
charged with
governance

Year end audit
(8th June – 31 July)
Detailed audit
testing

• Review of financial
statements

Clearance meetings with
management

Completion
(August/September)
Management letter to the
Audit Committee including
report on significant
deficiencies in internal control.

Statutory audit opinions
Representation Letter
Annual Audit Letter

Interim (2nd March - 13th

March)
Update understanding of key
processes and controls

Key accounting and audit
findings/significant
deficiencies in internal
control identified,
discussed and resolved

Early substantive
testing
Update our
planning workAudit

Cycle

Continuous Communication
• Continuous proactive discussion of issues as and when they arise; ‘no surprises’
• Continuous evaluation and improvement of the audit
• Bringing you experience of sector and best practice

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council PwC  21

Quality is built into every aspect of the way that we deliver the Authority audit. We take great pride in being your auditors and
in the value of assurance that the audit opinion provides. A timely, independent and rigorous audit is fundamental. This in
turn necessitates getting the basics right – clarity on audit risks, scope, resource, timetables, deliverables and areas of
judgement – which is supported by our team that has extensive experience and relevant training.

The table below sets out some of the key ways in which we ensure we deliver a high quality audit.

Procedure Description

People Quality begins with our people. To ensure that every engagement team provides quality, we use carefully
designed protocols for recruiting, training, promoting, assigning responsibility and managing and
overseeing the work of our people. We invest significant amounts of time and money for the training and
development of our audit professionals. Every new team member is carefully selected to ensure they have
the right blend of technical expertise and industry experience to support the Authority audit.

Client acceptance
and retention

Our client acceptance and retention standards and procedures are designed to identify risks of a client or
prospective client to determine whether the risks are manageable.

Audit
methodology

The same audit methodology is used for all Local Authority audit engagements, thereby ensuring
uniformity and consistency in approach. Compliance with this methodology is regularly reviewed and
evaluated. Comprehensive policies and procedures governing our accounting and auditing practice –
covering professional and regulatory standards as well as implementation issues – are constantly
updated for new professional developments and emerging issues, needs and concerns of the practice.

Technical
consultation

Consultations by engagement teams, typically with senior technical partners unaffiliated with the audit
engagement, are required in particular circumstances involving auditing, accounting or reporting
matters including matters such as going concern and clinical quality issues. In addition, we regularly
consult with our industry specialists in the Local Government Centre of Excellence and our accounting
technical experts that sit on the Audit Commission Auditors’ Group.

Appendix C: Audit quality

P
age 60

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council PwC  22

Procedure Description

Technical updates PwC prepares numerous publications to keep both PwC staff and our clients abreast of the latest
technical guidance.

These include:

 A weekly publication covering the week’s accounting and business developments;
 A periodic publication providing in-depth analysis of significant accounting developments; and
 A publication issued shortly after meetings of standard setters, including IFRIC and the EITF, to

provide timely feedback on issues discussed at the meeting.

We also provide Local Government specific technical updates through regular publications issued by our
Local Government Centre of Excellence and weekly conference calls for all Local Authority engagement
teams during the final audit period. We will share our technical updates with you throughout the year.

Independence
standards

PwC has policies and systems designed to comply with relevant independence and client retention
standards. Before a piece of non-audit work can begin for the Authority, it must first be authorised by the
engagement leader who evaluates the project against our own internal policies and safeguards and
against your policy on non-audit services. Above a certain fee threshold, we then seek approval from the
Audit Commission before proceeding with any work.

Ethics Our Ethics and Business Conduct Programme includes confidential communication channels to voice
questions and concerns 24 hours a day, seven days a week. Confidentiality helps us to ensure that we
receive the candid information and that we respond with the appropriate technical and risk management
resources.

Independent
review

Our audits are subject to ongoing review and evaluation by review teams within PwC and also by the
Audit Quality Review Team (AQRT, formerly the Audit Inspection Unit). The most recent report on PwC
was issued in May 2014 and although there are some areas for development identified the general theme
was that audit quality has continued to improve. The firm has developed action plans for all areas for
development identified by the AQRT.

As auditors appointed by the Audit Commission we are also required to comply with their annual
Regulatory Compliance and Quality Review programme. The results for our 2013/14 audits are expected
in 2015 and will be publicly available on the Audit Commission’s website should you wish to take a look.

P
age 61

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council PwC  23

Smart People
We deploy quality people on your audit, supported by a substantial investment in training and in our industry programme.
The members of staff deployed on your audit have been primarily taken from our dedicated Government and Public Sector
team. These staff members have a wide and deep knowledge both of the Authority and the local government sector.

Key members of the audit team including the engagement manager and team leader have been involved in the audit of the
Authority for a number of years. This ensures continuity which is beneficial both for our people and your audit through
ensuring that accumulated knowledge remains within the audit team, improving the quality of the audit we deliver.

We use dedicated IT specialists on the audit and share their insight and experience of best practices with you.

Smart Approach
Data auditing

We use technology-enabled audit techniques to drive quality, efficiency and insight.

In 2014/15 we anticipate the work will include:

 Testing journals using data analytics, ensuring we consider the complete population of journals and target our
detailed testing on the items with the highest inherent risk.

 The production of a journals ‘insight report’ which shows the comparable use of journals across the organisation and
explores some of the root causes. We use the data gathered as part of our journals testing to share our findings and
observations with management.

Centre of Excellence

We have a Centre of Excellence in the UK for Local Government which is a dedicated team of specialists which advises, assists
and shares best practice with our audit teams in more complex areas of the audit.

Our team has been working side by side with the Centre of Excellence to ensure we are executing the best possible audit
approach.

Delivery centres

We use dedicated delivery centres to deliver parts of our audit work that are routine and can be done by teams dedicated to
specific tasks; for example these include confirmation procedures, preliminary independence checks and consistency and
casting checks of the financial statements.

The use of our delivery centres frees up your audit team to focus on other areas of the audit.

P
age 62

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council PwC  24

We have agreed a process with the Audit Commission, under which data can be off-shored to PwC Service delivery Centres in
India and Poland for the facilitation of basic audit tasks, as highlighted earlier. We have also agreed with the Audit
Commission how this will be regulated, together with their independent review of our internal processes to ensure
compliance, with the Audit Commission requirements for off-shoring. Further information is included in Appendix E.

Smart Technology
Aura

We have designed processes that automate and simplify audit activity wherever possible. Central to this is PwC’s Aura
software, which has set the standard for audit technology. It is a powerful tool, enabling us to direct and oversee audit
activities.

Aura’s risk-based approach and workflow technology results in a higher quality, more effective audit and the tailored testing
libraries allow us to build standard work programmes for key Authority audit cycles.

Our ‘smart’ approach underpins your audit

Client Connect

We have also created a shared, secure, web-based portal where we can exchange documents and information.
Client Connect also monitors the status of information on a real-time basis, allowing both our team and your staff to monitor
the progress of the audit.

Smart people Smart approach Smart technology The PwC Audit

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council PwC  25

The Audit Commission appoint us as auditors to Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council and the terms of our appointment are
governed by:

 The Code of Audit Practice; and
 The Standing Guidance for Auditors.

There are five further matters which are not currently included within the guidance, but which our firm’s practice requires
that we raise with you.

Electronic communication
During the engagement we may from time to time communicate electronically with each other. However, the electronic
transmission of information cannot be guaranteed to be secure, virus or error free and such information could be intercepted,
corrupted, lost, destroyed, arrive late or incomplete or otherwise be adversely affected or unsafe to use.

PwC partners and staff may also need to access PwC electronic information and resources during the engagement. You agree
that there are benefits to each of us in their being able to access the PwC network via your internet connection and that they
may do this by connecting their PwC laptop computers to your network. We each understand that there are risks to each of us
associated with such access, including in relation to security and the transmission of viruses.

We each recognise that systems and procedures cannot be a guarantee that transmissions, our respective networks and the
devices connected to these networks will be unaffected by risks such as those identified in the previous two paragraphs. We
each agree to accept the risks of and authorise (a) electronic communications between us and (b) the use of your network and
internet connection as set out above. We each agree to use commercially reasonable procedures (i) to check for the then most
commonly known viruses before either of us sends information electronically or we connect to your network and (ii) to
prevent unauthorised access to each other’s systems.

We shall each be responsible for protecting our own systems and interests and you and PwC (in each case including our
respective directors, members, partners, employees, agents or servants) shall have no liability to each other on any basis,
whether in contract, tort (including negligence) or otherwise, in respect of any error, damage, loss or omission arising from or

Appendix D: Other engagement information

P
age 64

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council PwC  26

in connection with the electronic communication of information between us and our reliance on such information or our use
of your network and internet connection.

The exclusion of liability in the previous paragraph shall not apply to the extent that such liability cannot by law be excluded.

Access to audit working papers
We may be required to give access to our audit working papers to the Audit Commission or the National Audit Office for
quality assurance purposes.

Overseas processing of information
Recently, as with other firms, we have agreed a process with the Audit Commission, under which data can be off-shored to
PwC Service Delivery Centres in India and Poland for the facilitation of basic audit tasks. Please refer to the letter at the end of
this Appendix for further information on the types of tasks we may off-shore. We confirm that:

 When work is off-shored the firm delivering the audit remains entirely responsible for the conduct of the audit. As
such the data will be subject to similar data quality control procedures as if the work had not been off-shored,
maintaining the security of your data.

 All firms within the PricewaterhouseCoopers network, including the PwC Service Delivery Centres, have signed an
intra-group data protection agreement which includes data protection obligations equivalent to those set out in the
EU model contract for the transfer of personal data to data processors outside of the European Economic Area.

 We shall comply at all times with the seventh principle in Part 1 of Schedule 1 to the Data Protection Act 1998.

 Your audit team members will remain your key audit contacts, you will not need to communicate with our overseas
delivery teams.

 The audit team members are responsible for reviewing all of the work performed by the overseas delivery teams.

 We already successfully use a UK based delivery centre for financial statements quality checks and that this service
will remain in the UK.

If you have any questions regarding this process or if you require further information then please contact Richard Thomas.

P
age 65

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council PwC  27

Quality arrangements
We want to provide you at all times with a high quality service to meet your needs. If at any time you would like to discuss with
us how our service could be improved or if you are dissatisfied with any aspect of our services, please raise the matter
immediately with the partner responsible for that aspect of our services to you. If, for any reason, you would prefer to discuss
these matters with someone other than that partner, please contact Richard Bacon, our Government & Public Sector
Assurance Lead Partner at our office at Cornwall Court, Birmingham, B3 2DT, or James Chalmers, UK Head of Assurance, at
our office at 1 Embankment Place, London, WC2N 6NN. In this way we can ensure that your concerns are dealt with carefully
and promptly. We undertake to look into any complaint carefully and promptly and to do all we can to explain the position to
you. This will not affect your right to complain to the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales or to the Audit
Commission.

Events arising between signature of accounts and their publication
ISA (UK&I) 560 places a number of requirements on us in the event of material events arising between the signing of the
accounts and their publication. You need to inform us of any such matters that arise so we can fulfil our responsibilities.

If you have any queries on the above, please let us know before approving the Audit Plan or, if arising subsequently, at any
point during the year.

P
age 66

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council PwC  28

Private & Confidential

Margaret Rawding
Sefton Council
Magdalen House
30 Trinity Road
Bootle
L20 3NJ

March 2015

Dear Margaret,

Working more efficiently

As you know the Audit Commission recently tendered the audit work previously delivered by the District Audit service. This
realised significant savings which have been passed on to your organisation in a reduction to your scale fee of around 40%.

As a result of this tender, suppliers have sought for opportunities to increase efficiency, whilst maintaining the level of quality.
One principle which has recently been established is that certain basic parts of the audit can be off-shored. This is common
practice in the private sector. When work is off-shored the firm delivering the audit and thus your audit team, remains entirely
responsible for the conduct of the audit. As such the data would be subject to similar data quality control procedures as if the
work had not been off-shored, maintaining the security of your data.

Examples of the work that can be off-shored are:

 Request for confirmations (Receivables, Bank or Payables);

 Verification/vouching of information to source documentation (e.g. agreeing a payable balance to invoice);

 Financial statements review;

Appendix E: Use of service centres

P
age 67

A
genda Item

 6



Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council PwC  29

 Mathematical accuracy checks of data;

 Research; and

 Preparation of lead schedules.

Recently, as with other firms, we have agreed a process with the Audit Commission, under which data can be off-shored to
PwC Service delivery Centres in India and Poland for the facilitation of basic audit tasks, as highlighted above. We have agreed
with the Audit Commission how this will be regulated, together with their independent review of our internal processes to
ensure compliance, with the Audit Commission requirements for off-shoring.

If you have any questions regarding the above, please do not hesitate to get in touch.

Yours sincerely

Ian Looker

Engagement Leader

P
age 68

A
genda Item

 6



In the event that, pursuant to a request which Sefton MBC has received under the Freedom of Information Act 2000, it is required to disclose any information contained in this report, it will
notify PwC promptly and consult with PwC prior to disclosing such report. Sefton MBC agrees to pay due regard to any representations which PwC may make in connection with such disclosure
and Sefton MBC shall apply any relevant exemptions which may exist under the Act to such report. If, following consultation with PwC, Sefton MBC discloses this report or any part thereof, it
shall ensure that any disclaimer which PwC has included or may subsequently wish to include in the information is reproduced in full in any copies disclosed.

This document has been prepared only for Sefton MBC and solely for the purpose and on the terms agreed through our contract with the Audit Commission. We accept no liability (including for

negligence) to anyone else in connection with this document, and it may not be provided to anyone else.

© 2015 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. All rights reserved. In this document, "PwC" refers to the UK member firm, and may sometimes refer to the PwC network. Each member firm is a separate
legal entity. Please see www.pwc.com/structure for further details.

130610-142627-JA-UK

P
age 69

A
genda Item

 6



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Audit and Governance Committee Date of Meeting: 25 March 2015
  
Subject: Treasury Management 2014/15 – Position to February 2015

Report of: Head of Corporate Finance and ICT

Wards Affected: All

Is this a Key Decision? No Is it included in the Forward 
Plan? No

Exempt/Confidential No 

Purpose/Summary

To inform members of Treasury Management Activities undertaken to 28 February 2015.

Recommendation

The Audit and Governance Committee is requested to note the Treasury Management 
update to 28 February 2015.

How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Objectives? 

Corporate Objective Positive 
Impact

Neutral 
Impact

Negative 
Impact

1 Creating a Learning Community 

2 Jobs and Prosperity 

3 Environmental Sustainability 

4 Health and Well-Being 

5 Children and Young People 

6 Creating Safe Communities 
7 Creating Inclusive Communities 
8 Improving the Quality of Council Services 

and Strengthening Local Democracy


Reasons for the Recommendation:
To ensure that the Audit and Governance Committee is fully apprised of treasury activity 
undertaken to 28 February 2015.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs
The financial position on the external investments to the end of February indicates 
a surplus of £111,000 compared to the proportion of the budget to date. The 
position as at the end of the year will depend upon market conditions and the 
investment rates available.

Page 71

Agenda Item 7



(B) Capital Costs
None.

Implications:
The following implications of this proposal have been considered and where there are 
specific implications, these are set out below:

Legal The Council has a statutory duty to review its Treasury Management 
activities from time to time during the financial year.
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 
Treasury Management Code of Practice recommends that regular reports 
are prepared and considered on the implementation of treasury 
management policies; on the effects of decisions taken and transactions 
executed in pursuance of those policies.

Human Resources               None
Equality
1. No Equality Implication

2. Equality Implications identified and mitigated

3. Equality Implication identified and risk remains

Impact on Service Delivery:
None.

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?
The Head of Corporate Finance and ICT has been involved in the preparation of this 
report. (FD 3476/15)

The Head of Corporate Legal Services has been consulted and has no comments to add 
to the report. (LD 2768/15)

Are there any other options available for consideration?
None.

Implementation Date for the Decision
Immediately following the Committee Meeting.

Contact Officer: Tom Walmsley
Tel: 0151 934 4042
Email: thomas.walmsley@sefton.gov.uk

Background Papers:
There are no background papers available for inspection.



Page 72

Agenda Item 7



1 BACKGROUND TO THE REPORT

1.1 The Treasury Management Policy and Strategy document for 2014/15 (approved 
by Council on 6 March 2014) included a requirement for regular updates to be 
provided to the Audit and Governance Committee on the investment activity of the 
Authority. This report is the third of such reports for the year and presents relevant 
Treasury Management information for the period ending 28 February 2015. 

1.2 The report includes information on the investments held / entered into during the 
period and the interest rates obtained (with a comparison of performance against 
a standard benchmark figure). In addition, the report highlights whether there has 
been any variance from the Treasury Management Policy Strategy and the 
Prudential Indicators (the operational boundaries within which the Council aims to 
work). 

2 INVESTMENTS HELD

Investments held at the end of February 2015 comprise the following:

Overnight deposits
Institution Deposit

£m
Rate % Maturity 

date
On current 

counterparty
list?

Santander 4.570 0.40 N/A Yes
Natwest 0.210 0.25 N/A Yes
Svenska 
Handelsbanken

5.860 0.40 N/A Yes

Amundi 1.190 0.40 N/A Yes
Invesco                         0.990 0.39 N/A Yes
Goldman Sachs 5.930 0.43 N/A Yes
PrimeRate 2.030 0.40 N/A Yes
Aviva 5.930 0.42 N/A Yes
BNP Paribas 5.930 0.46 N/A Yes
IGNIS 5.930 0.47 N/A Yes
Insight MMF 5.930 0.44 N/A Yes
Total 44.500

Fixed term deposits
Nationwide 5.000 0.66 27/07/2015 Yes
HBOS 5.000 0.95 29/05/2015 Yes
Funding Circle 0.010 See 

para 2.3
N/A N/A

CCLA 5.000 See 
para 2.4

N/A Yes

Total 15.010

TOTAL 59.510

2.1 All of the investments made since April 2014 have been with organisations on the 
current counterparty list. The maximum level of investment permitted in the 

Page 73

Agenda Item 7



Treasury Management Strategy in any one institution, or banking group, is 
currently £25m. Whilst the maximum should be retained, in case economic 
conditions change, a day to day operational maximum of £15m is currently being 
imposed. This will spread the risk of investments for the Council, but will have a 
small detrimental impact on the returns the Council will receive in the future. The 
Council has remained within that boundary during the year. At present, it is not 
expected that there will be any need to review this limit.

2.2 The Council will only invest in institutions that hold a minimum Fitch rating of A- for 
banking institutions, or Aaa/Mr1+ for money market funds. The ratings applied to 
investment grade institutions, and the much riskier speculative grade institutions, 
as defined by Fitch, have been placed into a risk matrix. 

2.3 A sum of £10,000 has been placed with the Funding Circle, a body that helps 
businesses access funding at a lower interest rate than is charged commercially 
by bidding for funding. Interest of around 6% will be earned once funding has 
been placed on loan to businesses. A loan has now been made of £1,500 to a 
local printing business based in Maghull, repayable over 4 years.

2.4 An investment has been made with the Church, Charities and Local Authority 
Investment Fund (CCLA) in June 2014. CCLA invest in commercial property which 
is rented out to enterprises as retail units, warehousing, and offices. The majority 
of properties owned are in the south of the country which currently has a more 
bouyant economy than the north. The Council has in effect bought a share of the 
property portfolio (cost £5m), and returns paid are in the region of 5%. This is 
seen as a long term investment with the potential for capital growth of the 
investment as property prices potentially increase. When the investment is made 
initial set up fees are deducted from the initial investment, hence first year income 
is often required to covers these fees. However, the purchase of the investment in 
July 2014 now has a value of £5,070,667, which shows capital growth of £70,667 
on the initial investment of £5m. The first two dividends have been received from 
the CCLA. The dividend received for the period 1 July 2014 to 30 September 2014 
was £66,645.59, whilst the dividend for the period 1 October 2014 to 31 
December 2014 was £63,718. This equates a yield of 4.6 %. It is anticipated that 
£250,000 of income will be earned in 2015/16.  

2.5 The matrix shows how the Council has set its risk appetite by being risk averse 
and putting security and liquidity before yield.

Page 74

Agenda Item 7



PROBABLITY 
of DEFAULT

High

INCREASING 
YIELD

High F1 A+            
6

F2             
12

F3                 
18

B             
24

C             
30

D             
36

F1 A+             
5

F2           
10

F3            
15

F3             
20

B             
25

C             
30

F1+/AA-                              
4

F1 A                    
8

F2                                 
12                    

F3                       
16                     

F3             
20

B             
24

F1+/AA                
3

F1  A+                                        
6

F1 A                      
9

F2                                     
12                    

F3             
15

F3                 
18

F1+/AA+                
2

F1+/AA-                
4         

F1  A+                                        
6

F1 A                          
8
£25.65m

F2           
10

F2             
12

F1+/AAA               
1    
£33.86m

F1+/AA+                    
2

F1+/AA              
3

F1+/AA-                      
4

F1 A+            
5

F1 A+            
6

Low High SEVERITY of 
CONSEQUENCE

SEFTON RISK 
TOLERANCE 4 INVESTED

LOW RISK 1 - 4 Investment Grade £33.86m

LOW - MEDIUM 
RISK 5 - 9 Investment Grade £25.65m

MEDIUM RISK 10 - 20 Investment Grade Nil

HIGH RISK 21 - 36 Speculative Grade Nil

Page 75

Agenda Item 7



2.6 The ratio of overnight deposits (i.e. short term) to fixed term investments is 
illustrated below: 

2.7 Looking to longer term investments for better returns will be key, as advised by 
SECTOR, our Treasury Advisors. However timing of the decision is key as 
SECTOR project that the bank rate will rise to 0.75% in Q3 2015, to 1% in Q1 
2016, and to 1.25% in Q3 2016. 

3 INTEREST EARNED

3.1 The actual performance of investments against the profiled budget for the period 
to 28 February 2015 is shown below:

2014/15 Quarterly Investment Income

Budget £000s Actual £000s Variance £000s
To 
February 
2015

343 454 111

3.2 The budgeted investment average interest rate for 2014/15 is 0.5%, which 
equates to £0.379m income for the year. This figure assumes the income from 
investments already in place at 1 April 2014 and new returns based upon Bank of 
England’s Base Rate projection as supplied by Arlingclose, our previous treasury 
consultants.

3.3 The investment income achieved to 28 February is £0.454m, which equates to an 
average interest rate of 0.73%. This is higher than anticipated principally due to 
the high returns from the CCLA, despite the investment with the CCLA only being 
£5m.

  As noted in paragraph 2.7 it is anticipated that the bank rate will rise which may 
increase returns towards the end of the financial year.

We have outperformed the 7 day LIBID average as follows:

4 PRUDENTIAL INDICATOR MONITORING
 
4.1 Prudential indicators are an integral component of measuring how prudently a 

Council is acting with regard to its finances. They were introduced into all local 
authorities (by CIPFA) following the Local Government Act 2003. A number of 
measures/limits/parameters including capital financing, external debt, impact on 
council tax, and treasury management are set prior to the start of the year and are 
monitored on a monthly basis. 

4.2 None of the indicators have been breached as at the end of February 2015.

Page 76

Agenda Item 7



Report to: Audit and Governance Committee Date of 
Meeting:

25 March 2015

Subject: Audit Plan 2014/15 – Internal 
Audit Performance Report
April 2014 to February 2015

Wards 
Affected:

All

Report of: Head of Corporate Finance and 
ICT

Is this a Key 
Decision?

No Is it included in the Forward Plan? No

Exempt/Confidential
No 

Purpose/Summary
To provide Audit and Governance Committee with a summary of Internal Audit work 
undertaken during the period April 2014 to February 2015.

Recommendation

Members are requested to note the report.

How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Objectives?

Corporate Objective Positive 
Impact

Neutral 
Impact

Negative 
Impact

1 Creating a Learning Community 

2 Jobs and Prosperity 

3 Environmental Sustainability 

4 Health and Well-Being 

5 Children and Young People 

6 Creating Safe Communities 

7 Creating Inclusive Communities 

8 Improving the Quality of Council 
Services and Strengthening Local 
Democracy



Page 77

Agenda Item 8



Reasons for the Recommendation:

The Audit and Governance Committee requires to be informed of and review Internal 
Audit work as part of its review of the internal control environment and overall 
Governance arrangements.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 

No

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

There are no Revenue / Capital financial costs associated with the proposals in this 
report 

Implications:

The following implications of this proposal have been considered and where there are 
specific implications, these are set out below:

Financial
None
Legal
None
Human Resources
None
Equality
1. No Equality Implication

2. Equality Implications identified and mitigated

3. Equality Implication identified and risk remains

Impact of the Proposals on Service Delivery:

Internal Audit provides assurance to the Council that Internal Controls are provided for 
within systems utilised across the Council providing for effective and efficient service 
delivery for the community.



Page 78

Agenda Item 8



What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

The Head of Corporate Finance and ICT is the owner of the report (FD 3470/15) and 
notes that there are no financial implications implied within this report.

The Head of Corporate Legal Services (LD 2762/15 ) has been consulted and has no 
comments to add to the report.

Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Audit and Governance Committee meeting.

Contact Officer: Jim Kilburn, Computer Auditor
Tel: 0151 934 4053
Email:  jim.kilburn@sefton.gov.uk

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

Page 79

Agenda Item 8

mailto:jim.kilburn@sefton.gov.uk


1. Introduction/Background

1.1. The Chief Internal Auditor, under the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, is 
required to provide periodic reports on the performance of Internal Audit to the 
Audit and Governance Committee. These progress reports support the Chief 
Internal Auditor’s Annual Report and opinion and allow the Committee to assess 
the level of assurance it can gain over the Council’s governance and control 
arrangements. The work of the Internal Audit Section, which is drawn from the 
Annual Audit Plan, is fundamental in enabling this opinion to be formed. This 
opinion also contributes to the review of internal control and the Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS).

2. Report December 2014 to February 2015

2.1. This is the third progress report of 2014/15 on the work of the Internal Audit 
Section.  It provides Members with a summary of Internal Audit work both 
completed and at various stages of progress (i.e. draft report, final report, in 
progress) for the above mentioned period.  As part of the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards, the Chief Internal Auditor is required to provide a written report to 
those charged with governance, namely, the Audit and Governance Committee, 
which compares the work actually undertaken with that which was agreed as 
planned work in the Audit Plan.  The summary has been compiled taking into 
account this requirement and identifies the status of each audit (as outlined above) 
against the plan, the report includes dates of issue and response.

2.2. For each relevant Audit Area the numbers of Proposed / Agreed Recommendations 
are shown together with the following - date Draft Report Issued; date Final Report 
Issued; date Action Plan Returned and date Job Closed.  For each area reviewed 
an opinion has been given on the overall control environment pertaining at the time 
of the review and based on the Auditors assessment on the extent to which the 
system control objectives identified for the specific audit review have been met and 
the risks mitigated.  Audit opinion classifications given are: ‘Very Good’, ‘Good’, 
‘Fair’, ‘Weak’ or ‘Poor’. In the case of Value for Money (VFM) Reviews, opinions are 
expressed in terms of whether the VFM indicators are achieved, partially achieved 
or not achieved. Where audit reviews are ‘In Progress’ or ‘Pre Draft Report’ the 
outcome of these will be reported to the Audit and Governance Committee in the 
Final Quarterly Report for 2014/15.  The summary is attached at Annex A.  

2.3. The performance report for the Benefit Fraud Investigation Team (BFIT), provided 
by arvato Government Services is attached at Annex B.

2.4 Details of investigations undertaken in this period are reported in the separate 
Internal Audit Fraud Report.

3. Matters Arising from Audit Reports issued between December 2014 and 
February 2015

3.1 A review of the Atkinson Centre was completed in January 2015. This review 
consisted of a limited scope audit of compliance with key controls together with 
detailed testing to determine whether the controls are operating in practice.

Page 80

Agenda Item 8



3.2 The review identified a number of significant weaknesses, most notably in relation 
to income administration arrangements.  For example, there is an issue related to 
the lack of an interface between the till (Bleep)/ticketing (Ticketsolve) systems and 
the Authority’s general ledger system, ‘Oracle Financials’ (to be replaced by the 
Agresso system). 

3.3 As the overall audit classification/opinion given was ‘Weak’, a follow-up review will 
be undertaken by Internal Audit early in 2015/16 to ensure that the 
recommendations made have been implemented.

4. Audit Performance April 2014 to February 2015

4.1 As part of the planning process, every effort has been made to ensure that there 
has been a reasonable spread of audit work across departments. As the table 
below shows, with regard to completed audits, recommendations for improvement 
identified by Internal Audit continue to have a high level of acceptance by clients 
(100%). It is expected that a similar level of acceptance will apply to audits in 
progress.

Analysis of Audit Recommendations and Client Responses April 2014 to February 
2015

Proposed Agreed Not
Agreed

Awaiting
Confirmation

Audit Reviews
– Completed Audits
– In Progress/Draft etc

197
16

197 0
16

Total 213 197 0 16

4.2 Details of any recommendations that are not agreed will be reported to the Audit 
and Governance Committee.  

4.3 Response to Audit Reports is generally good and there are no significant non 
response issues requiring referral to Members at this stage. Internal Audit 
continues to receive a very positive response to their Client Satisfaction Surveys 
with 100% considering services to be ‘Very Good’ / ‘Good’.

Page 81

Agenda Item 8



5. Monitoring Report 

5.1 As stated in the Internal Audit Monitoring Report for December 2014, there are 
factors that have impacted on the delivery of the 2014/15 Audit Plan to date.  The 
table below gives a summary of actual audit days compared to budgeted days for 
2014/15.

Actual Audit Days compared to Budgeted Audit Days 2014/15

Category Budget
Days

Projected 
Actual
Days

Variance

Assurance 684 290 (394)
Value for Money/Business Re-
Engineering

105 87 (18)

Project Support 30 331 301
Anti-Fraud 100 12 (88)
ICT Sefton 115 51 (64)
ICT Warrington (not included in total) 40 30 (10)
Grant Certifications 18 14 (4)
Other 372 299 (73)
Management and Excluded time e.g. 
holidays/sickness 

664 1004 340

Total Non-Productive/Excluded 2088 2088

5.2 Explanations for the variances in the above table are shown below:

Internal Audit work has been re-ordered to allow assessment of financial and social 
care processes to be evaluated before the introduction of new systems to ensure 
that the new processes are meeting best practice from implementation.  The audit 
work has helped to identify significant changes in process and workflow which will 
strengthen future safeguards and deliver better value for money.  This reordering of 
work has increased Project Support days and it is projected that 301 days will be 
taken from other audit areas to facilitate this work by the end of 2014/15. 

Sickness absence and doctors/dentist//hospital appointments are projected to be 
162 days to the end of 2014/15.   No contingency for this category of absence was 
included in the Plan.   Most of this sickness relates to two officers.

Unplanned authorised absences accounted for 25 days to the end of February 
2015, but this is not expect to increase. This is attributable to compassionate leave 
following bereavement; a phased return to work and the industrial action in July. 

The budget for Audit Planning and Committee Reporting was exceeded by 33 
days, mainly due to the fact that most of the audit planning work in relation to the 
2014/15 plan was carried forward from 2013/14 to 2014/15.  In addition, further risk 
assessment work was undertaken which had not been not fully budgeted for.

The original Internal Audit resources calculation was based on a full staffing for the 
whole year.  However, one member of staff left the Authority at the end of 

Page 82

Agenda Item 8



November 2014 (Audit Manager).  This means that the budget was overstated by 
approximately 87 days.

An increase in budgeted days was authorised for specific audits due to the reviews 
being more complex than originally anticipated and the number / significance of the 
findings identified.  In all these cases the overall audit opinion provided was weak 
or poor.  This additional time allowance accounts for a total of 33 days. 

Page 83

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX A 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Internal Audit Section 
Summary of Internal Audit Work  

1st April 2014 – 28th  February 2015 
 

Sefton Council 

P
age 85

A
genda Item

 8



 

 
Audit Type Status Opinion Recommendations Draft Action Final Job 

Planned Work 
   

Proposed Agreed Sent Plan Ret Sent Closed 

        
      YOUNG PEOPLE & FAMILIES       
              
      Vulnerable Children       
      Children with Disabilities B/F Assurance Completed Fair 4 4 08/05/2014 02/06/2014 09/06/2014 09/06/2014 

Adoption Reform Grant Grant 
Certification 

Completed N/A N/A N/A 13/05/2014 N/A 27/05/2014 27/05/2014 

        
      Early Intervention & Prevention       
      Troubled Families - Quarter 1  Grant 

Certification 

Completed N/A N/A N/A 13/05/2014 N/A 13/05/2014 13/05/2014 

Troubled Families - Quarter 2 Grant 
Certification 

Completed N/A 2 2 02/09/2014 30/09/2014 30/09/2014 02/10/2014 

Troubled Families - Quarter 3 Grant 
Certification 

Completed N/A 2 2 03/11/2014 26/11/2014 26/11/2014 02/12/2014 

Troubled Families - Quarter 4 Grant 
Certification 

Completed N/A N/A N/A 27/02/2015 N/A 27/02/2015 27/02/2015 

Youth Service 
Assurance 

In 
Progress 

        

Children's Centres Assurance           

Family Centres Assurance           

        
      Learning & Support       
      Cambridge Road Adult Education 

Centre Assurance Completed Poor 20 20 19/09/2014 07/11/2014 10/11/2014 10/11/2014 

Schools - Employees B/F Assurance Completed Good 15 15 02/09/2014 23/10/2014 23/10/2014 23/10/2014 

St Gregorys Primary School Assurance Completed Fair 15 15 27/08/2014 13/10/2014 15/10/2014 15/10/2014 

Free School Meals Assurance Completed   1 1 03/02/2015 25/02/2015 25/02/2015 25/02/2015 

Schools - Income Systems & Funding  Assurance     
      

Schools Charge Cards Assurance 
In 
Progress   

        

P
age 86

A
genda Item

 8



 

 
Audit Type Status Opinion Recommendations Draft Action Final Job 

Planned Work 
   

Proposed Agreed Sent Plan Ret Sent Closed 

OLDER PEOPLE       
              
      Health & Wellbeing       
      Atkinson Centre Assurance Completed Weak 22 22 18/12/2014 19/01/2015 26/01/2015 27/01/2015 

Formby Pool & Crosby PFI B/F Assurance Completed Fair 2 2 08/05/2014 15/05/2014 15/05/2014 15/05/2014 

Netherton Activity Centre & Litherland 
Sports Park 

Assurance 

    
      Crosby Lakeside Adventure Centre Assurance     
              
      Commissioning & Partnerships       
      Contracts & Commissioning  Assurance     
      Domiciliary Care Assurnace     
              
      Vulnerable People       
      Adult Social Care Complaints Assurance     
      Adult Social Care Assessment Team 

Workflows (Inc Adult Safeguarding) Assurance     
              
      Public Health       
      Performance Management Framework Assurance     
              
      CORPORATE SERVICES       
              
      Corporate Finance & ICT       
      Payments to Self Employed B/F Assurance DR Weak 6 

     Client Team - arvato Contract 
Management 

Assurance Completed Very Good 0 0 13/08/2014 N/A 29/08/2014 29/08/2014 

Income Systems VFM 
In 
Progress   

      Debt Management Assurance In 
Progress 

        

  

P
age 87

A
genda Item

 8



 

 
Audit Type Status Opinion Recommendations Draft Action Final Job 

Planned Work 
   

Proposed Agreed Sent Plan Ret Sent Closed 

Leasing Assurance           

Procurement Assurance           

Budget Monitoring Assurance           

Banking Contract VFM           

Benefits Verification Policy (Follow Up) Assurance           

Annual Billing Checks Assurance           

              

Corporate Legal Services             

Case Management Assurance           

              

Corporate Personnel             

HR Transactional Services B/F Assurance Completed Weak 6 6 10/06/2014 10/10/2014 13/10/2014 20/10/2014 

Payroll Client Team 
Assurance 

In 
Progress   

      Casual Employees Assurance     
      Occupational Health Unit Assurance     
      Pre Employment Screening Checks Assurance     
              
      Neighbourhoods       
      Neighbourhoods       
              
      Corporate Communications       
      Marketing & Advertising VFM     
              
      Governance & Civic Services       
      Electoral Services (Unplanned) Assurance DR Fair 7 

     Mayors Charity 
Assurance 

In 
Progress   

              
       

  

P
age 88

A
genda Item

 8



 

 
Audit Type Status Opinion Recommendations Draft Action Final Job 

Planned Work 
   

Proposed Agreed Sent Plan Ret Sent Closed 

BUILT ENVIRONMENT       
              
      Investment Programme & 

Infrastructure 
  

    
      Renovation Grants / DFG  B/F Assurance Completed Good 3 3 15/09/2014 13/10/2014 13/10/2014 20/10/2014 

Integrated Capital Transport Grant Grant 
Certification Completed N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 11/08/2014 11/08/2014 

KADOE - Phase 2 Assurance Completed N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 01/05/2014 01/05/2014 

Local Sustainable Transport Fund 
Grant 

Grant 
Certification Completed N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 27/02/2014 27/02/2014 

Asset & Property Management VFM     
              
      Environment       
      Pest Control Assurance Completed Good 2 2 15/10/2014 16/10/2014 16/10/2014 17/10/2014 

Licencing & Regulation B/F Assurance Completed Fair 8 8 25/11/2014 12/01/2015 13/01/2015 13/01/2015 

             

 Economy & Tourism            

 Southport Market Assurance          

 Events e.g. Fireworks, Airshow, 
Classical Concerts 

Assurance          

              

 STREETSCENE             

        
 

    

 Landscape Services       
 

    

 Golf Courses Assurance Completed Fair 4 4 25/11/2014 27/11/2014 19/12/2014 19/12/2014 

Grounds Maintenance Assurance     

  

   

 Registrars Assurance     

  

   

         

  

   

 Direct Services       

  

   

 Building Cleaning Assurance     

  

   

   

P
age 89

A
genda Item

 8



 

 
Audit Type Status Opinion Recommendations Draft Action Final Job 

Planned Work 
   

Proposed Agreed Sent Plan Ret Sent Closed 

Assistive Technology (Follow Up) Assurance     

  

   

 Cleansing Traded Services Assurance     

  

   

 Waste Collection Service VFM     

  

   

         

  

   

 Corporate Governance       

  

   

 Assurance Mapping N/A     

  

   

         

  

   

 ANTI FRAUD       

  

   

 Review of Confidential Reporting 
Arrangements 

Anti Fraud Completed Fair 11 11 05/08/2014 16/09/2014 16/09/2014 16/09/2014 

NFI - Suppliers / Salary B/F Anti Fraud Completed N/A 1 1 26/09/2014 02/02/2015 02/02/2015 02/02/2015 

Direct Payments Anti Fraud     

  

   

 Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme Anti Fraud     

  

   

 Blue Badge Anti Fraud     

  

   

 Business Rates Anti Fraud     

  

   

         

  

   

 PROJECT SUPPORT       

  

   

 

Integrated Adults Social Care System 
Project 
Support 

In 
Progress 

  

  

   

 Financial System 
Upgrade/Replacement 

Project 
Support 

In 
Progress 

  

  

   

         

  

   

 ICT       

  

   

 IS Policy Compliance Follow-up B/F ICT Completed Fair 3 3 17/03/2014 21/05/2014 04/06/2014 04/06/2014 

Integrated Adult System (IAS) ICT Completed N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 12/08/2014 

Payment Card Industry - Data Security 
Standards (PCI - DSS) 

ICT Completed  

Good 6 6 02/02/2015 26/02/2015 26/02/2015 27/02/2015 

Information Governance  ICT Completed N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 02/02/2015 02/02/2015 

Information Governance - Schools ICT 
In 
Progress 

  

  

   

 Mobile Devices/Computing ICT     

  

   

   

P
age 90

A
genda Item

 8



 

 
Audit Type Status Opinion Recommendations Draft Action Final Job 

Planned Work 
   

Proposed Agreed Sent Plan Ret Sent Closed 

ICT Assurance Mapping ICT     

  

   

 Sefton at Work ICT Security Audit ICT     

  

   

         

  

   

 CONSULTANCY       

  

   

         

  

   

 St Gregorys Primary School - Income 
B/F   Completed 

Poor 
18 18 

14/04/2014 09/05/2014 22/05/2014 
22/05/2014 

My View Disclaimer   Completed N/A 2 2 05/06/2014 26/06/2014 26/06/2014 26/06/2014 

Employee HB Fraud Protocol   Completed N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 18/08/2014 18/08/2014 

Travel Team Ipads   Completed N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 23/07/2014 23/07/2014 

Network Data Usage   Completed N/A N/A N/A 17/07/2014 N/A 17/07/2014 17/07/2014 

Skip Invoicing B/F   Completed Weak 6 6 20/08/2014 19/09/2014 19/09/2014 19/09/2014 

Linaker Primary School - Controls 
Report   Completed 

Poor 
22 22 

09/09/2014 08/10/2014 10/10/2014 
21/10/2014 

Holy Family HS Charge Card   Completed N/A 4 4 11/09/2014 12/09/2014 12/09/2014 12/09/2014 

Irregular Claims Module   Completed N/A 1 1 03/10/2014 07/10/2014 07/10/2014 07/10/2014 

Use of ICT Facilities Notice   Completed N/A N/A N/A 15/10/2014 15/10/2014 15/10/2014 15/10/2014 

St Robert Bellamine Controls Report   Completed Weak 9 9 27/10/2014 12/11/2014 19/11/2014 19/11/2014 

DFG Fee   Completed   N/A N/A N/A N/A 18/11/2014 18/11/2014 

Schools External Bank Accounts   Completed   N/A N/A N/A N/A 27/10/2014 27/10/2014 

Library Review   Completed   8 8 12/05/2014 N/A 12/05/2014 12/05/2014 

Trading Standards IS Security & ICT 
Usage   DR N/A 3 

 

   

         

  

   

 ADVICE       
      There have been 35 requests for 

Advice in the period        
              
      FREEDOM of INFORMATION       
      Audit has responded/assisted with 5 

FoI requests in the period        
       

P
age 91

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank



ANNEXE B 
Benefit Fraud Investigation Team (BFIT) 
 
Summary of Work 18th November 2014 to 24TH February 2015 
 
1. Caseload and Results 
 
1.1. The following table shows the number of investigations undertaken by BFIT and 

analyses the results. 
 

 
 

  
1.2 It can be seen that the Team has returned an investigation success rate between 

November 2014 and February 2015 (inclusive) of 28 cases out of 67, a success rate 
of 42%. Of the 39 cases closed no fraud during the period, 16 (41%) were HBMS 
referrals. BFIT continues to receive some good quality referrals as a result of these 
data matches.  The BFIT also continues to react to both internal and external referrals 
and undertakes pro-active work, such as following up overpayments generated by the 
Benefits Service.  

 
 
2. Sanctions and Prosecutions 
 
2.1. Sanctions in the period 18th November 2014 to 24th February 2015 are as follows: 
 
 

 
 
 

Other aspects of BFIT work highlighted for Members is noted below. 
 
 
 

Result Outcome Period 
Nov – Feb  

(incl) 

As % of cases 
investigated 

Period 
Apr – Feb 

(incl) 

As % of cases 
investigated 

 
Cases Closed 
 
Results 
Fraud Proved 
Not Resident 
Incorrect Benefit 
Total Positive Results 
No fraud 
 
 
Not 
Investigated/passed to 
DWP 
 
Total Cases 

 
82 
 
 

 25 
  1 
   2 
 28 
 39 
 67 

 
15 
 
 

82 

 
100 

 
 

37 
  2 
  3 
 42 
 58 
100 

 
435 

 
 

114 
 28 
 20 
162 
213 

          375 
 

    60 
 
 

           435 
 

 
100 

 
 

 30 
  7 
  5 
 42 
 58 
100 

 
 
 

Type      Nov’14 to 
Feb‘15  

Apr‘14 – Feb‘15 

      Convictions        5    24 
      Cautions               13               45 
      Ad Pens         1      2 

      Total               19               71 

Page 93

Agenda Item 8



ANNEXE B 
3. Housing Benefit Matching Service (HBMS) 
 
3.1 HBMS is a branch of the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) dealing with data-

matching.  Each month the Council submits HB data to the HBMS who then match 
this against a range of other data from the DWP, Revenue and Customs, Pensions 
etc. Matches, which are normally of high quality, are then returned to the Council for 
further investigation. Between 18th November 2014 and 25th February 2015 the BFIT 
received 21 referrals from the HBMS that required further investigation. In the same 
period, 34 cases derived from HBMS were closed after investigation. Positive results 
were recorded on 15 cases (44%), representing a very positive outcome regarding 
these types of investigations.  

 
 
4.  Joint Working 
 
4.1 Of the 5 convictions obtained by BFIT during the period 18th November 2014 to 24th 

February 2015, 4 were as a result of joint working with the Department for Work & 
Pensions (DWP).  Sefton MBC continues to enjoy a good working relationship with 
DWP Investigators, which is reflected in the many positive cases highlighted during 
the year.  These investigations resulted in overpayments totalling £47,400.95 in 
respect of these 4 joint working prosecution cases. 
 

5. Recent prosecution case 
 
5.1 One of the above joint working cases involved a female from the Maghull area, who 

was alleged to be living with an undeclared partner working full time. She was 
interviewed under caution at Hougoumont House by officers from the DWP and the LA 
in December 2013. During the interview she admitted that she has had a partner with 
living her since November 2004 who has been in full-time employment. As a result of 
falsely claiming benefits from this date, she was overpaid benefits totalling £90,246.39, 
made up of £33,545.79 HB, £4,928.30 CTB and £51,772.30 Income Support.  

 
5.2 On 5th February 2015 she was found guilty at Sefton Magistrates of failing to report a 

relevant change in circumstances in order to falsely claim benefits and will be 
sentenced on 19th March 2015  

 
 Real Time Information 

 

6.1 The BFIT now liaises with the Benefits Service in respect of overpayments raised as a 
result of Real Time Information (RTI) information.  This data is received by the Local 
Authority on a monthly basis and confirms any changes in circumstances relating to 
wages or pension details.  The BFIT will now receive confirmation of overpayments 
generated as a result of this information in order to identify any appropriate cases for 
further investigation.   

 

Page 94

Agenda Item 8



Report to: Audit and Governance 
Committee

Date of 
Meeting:

25 March 2015

Subject: Internal Audit Annual Plan 
2015/16

Wards 
Affected:

All

Report of: Head of Corporate Finance and 
ICT

Is this a Key 
Decision?

No Is it included in the Forward Plan? No

Exempt/Confidential No 

Purpose/Summary

To provide Audit and Governance Committee with the Internal Audit Plan for 2015/16 
and request approval.

Recommendation

Members are requested to approve the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2015/16.

How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Objectives?

Corporate Objective Positive 
Impact

Neutral 
Impact

Negative 
Impact

1 Creating a Learning Community 

2 Jobs and Prosperity 

3 Environmental Sustainability 

4 Health and Well-Being 

5 Children and Young People 

6 Creating Safe Communities 

7 Creating Inclusive Communities 

8 Improving the Quality of Council 
Services and Strengthening Local 
Democracy



Page 95

Agenda Item 9



Reasons for the Recommendation:

In order that Members can be made aware of and approve the planned work of the 
Internal Audit Section for 2015/16.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 

The Committee could choose not to approve the Annual Audit Plan.  The Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards requires that Internal Audit operate to a risk-based Audit Plan.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

There are no financial costs associated with the proposals within this report.

Implications:

The following implications of this proposal have been considered and where there are 
specific implications, these are set out below:

Financial
None
Legal
None
Human Resources
None
Equality
1. No Equality Implication

2. Equality Implications identified and mitigated

3. Equality Implication identified and risk remains

Impact of the Proposals on Service Delivery:

Internal Audit provide assurance to the Council that Internal Controls are provided for 
within systems utilised across the Council providing for effective and efficient service 
delivery for the community.

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

The Head of Corporate Finance and ICT (FD 3472/15) confirms that the Audit Plan is 
carried out utilising the existing budgets and that there are no further financial 
implications.



Page 96

Agenda Item 9



The Head of Corporate Legal Services (LD2764/15) has been consulted and has no 
comments on the report
I
Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Audit and Governance Committee meeting.

Contact Officer: Jim Kilburn, Computer Auditor
Tel: 0151 934 4053
Email: jim.kilburn@sefton.gov.uk 

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

Page 97

Agenda Item 9

mailto:jim.kilburn@sefton.gov.uk


1. Introduction/Background

1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011/817 require that the Council maintains 
an adequate and effective system of Internal Audit of its accounting records and of 
its system of internal control.  Internal Audit is an independent, objective 
assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve the 
Council’s operations. It helps the Council accomplish its objectives by bringing a 
systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 
management, control and governance processes. In fulfilling this, it supports the 
production of the Annual Governance Statement. 

1.2 In order to fulfil this responsibility and enable the Chief Internal Auditor to provide 
an annual opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal 
control environment, Internal Audit has to plan its work. The Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards, which became mandatory in 2013, also require the Chief Internal 
Auditor to develop a risk-based plan. 

1.3 The Audit Plan for 2015/16 has been compiled using the following methodology

 A review was undertaken of auditable areas within  the Council to ensure 
that it us up to date

 All of the auditable areas were risk assessed  and scored using the Internal 
Audit Risk Assessment template and methodology

 All of the auditable areas were allocated a risk classification depending on 
the calculated risk score (High, Medium, Low)

 An Internal Audit Plan was compiled for 2015/16 which includes the 
following:

 Audits in progress to be completed in Quarter 1 of 2015/16 
 Grant certification work requested by service areas
 Ongoing project support work
 An allowance for Anti- Fraud work 
 Governance work
 Assurance and Value for Money/Business Re-engineering work
 Other duties as required 

 Directors and Heads of Service were consulted in order to confirm that the 
plan includes areas that represent the greatest risk to the achievement of 
their service objectives. 

The methodology employed ensures that Members can be assured that the Plan 
will meet their strategic requirements and the strategic objectives of the Council. A 
copy of the plan has been provided to the Strategic Leadership Team.

1.4 Requirements of the PSIAS (Public Sector Internal Audit Standards) have been 
incorporated into the audit planning process.  It takes account of the requirement 
to produce an annual internal audit opinion. It is based on a documented risk 
assessment and the input of senior management and the Audit and Governance 
Committee has been considered. The planning process also considers the 
resources available to Internal Audit.  The Plan has been compiled based on the 
actual available resources which is 4 full-time equivalent Principal Auditors, 1 
Value for Money Auditor, 1 Computer Auditor and the Chief Internal Auditor.  

Page 98

Agenda Item 9



1.5 The resources calculation does not include the post of Audit Manager as this post 
is to remain vacant until the restructure of the Risk and Audit Service in 2015/16.   
Consequently, the Internal Audit Plan for 2015/16 has been amended accordingly.   
The Committee can be assured that Internal Audit is staffed with a suitable mix of 
professionally qualified (full and part qualified) experienced staff appropriate to the 
requirements of the Plan.

1.6 One area of the planning process that needs to be further developed is the 
requirement to take into account the Council’s overall assurance framework.  Time 
has been allocated for mapping the Assurance Framework in 2015/16 and the 
results of the exercise will be used to improve the planning process for 2016/17 
and future years by updating the framework through consultation with relevant 
service areas.

1.7 A number of different types of audit are included in the Plan as this represents the 
most effective way of ensuring that Internal Audit adds value and improves the 
Council’s operations. In addition to providing Assurance to management that key 
systems are operating as they should, time has been allocated for undertaking 
Value for Money/Business Re-Engineering work, Project Support, Grant 
Certification and Anti-Fraud work. A key characteristic of the Plan is that it is 
designed to be flexible and time has also been allocated for contingent purposes 
in respect of any unplanned work occurring in the year e.g. Consultancy, Advice, 
Investigations, Freedom of Information requests and unplanned assurance work.  
This time allocation allows Internal Audit to focus resources on emerging risks and 
enables the Team to react to Client demand as and when required.  The Plan will 
be kept under review throughout the year to ensure that the changing needs and 
demands of Clients are accommodated wherever possible. Any significant in-year 
changes to the approved Plan will be reported to the Audit and Governance 
Committee in accordance with the requirements of the PSIAS.

1.8 This report provides the methodology for compiling the Audit Plan and presents 
Members with the Internal Audit Plan for 2015/16 for approval at Annex A.

Page 99

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

ANNEX A 
 

 

Distribution List: 
 

For Action 

 Audit & Governance Committee 

 Strategic Leadership Team 
 

For Information 

 Strategic & Service Directors 

 Heads of Service 
From  

 Janice Bamber, Chief Internal Auditor 

Annual Internal Audit Plan 2015/16 
Date:  25th March 2015  

Internal Audit Section 
Corporate Finance & ICT 
2

nd
 Floor, Magdalen House 

30 Trinity Road, Bootle. L20 3NJ 

Internal Audit Annual Plan 2015/16 

P
age 101

A
genda Item

 9



 

Audit Plan 2015/16 
 

Director/Area Assurance   
Project 
Support 

Grant 
Cert 

Governance 
Anti-

Fraud** 
ICT VFM/BR 

Other 
Duties 

Total 
% of Total 

Days 

Young People and Families 98 35 10     20     163 12% 

Older People  105 35       10     150 11% 

Deputy Chief Executive 10               10 1% 

Corporate (Cross Cutting) 50 5   128         183 14% 

Corporate Support Services 
(Finance and ICT) 65 60       30     155 12% 

Corporate Support Services 
(Other) 50               50 4% 

Streetscene 60           50   110 8% 

Built Environment 78   6       20   104 8% 

Anti-Fraud (to be allocated)         100       100 8% 

Other Duties               95 95 7% 

Contingency*                 207 16% 

Total  501 135 16 128 100 60 70 95 1327 100% 

Percentage 38% 10% 1% 10% 8% 5% 5% 7% 100%   
  

P
age 102

A
genda Item

 9



 

 

Director Service Area Auditable Area Priority Audit Outline Audit Type Indicative 
Days 

Reason for Inclusion 
in Draft Plan 

Built Environment Economy 
and Tourism 

Sefton at Work 
Information 
Security Plan 

N/A Review of a sample of 
controls detailed in the 
Sefton at Work Information 
Security Plan 

ICT 5 External Funding 
Requirement 

Built Environment Environment  Carbon Reduction 
Commitment 

High Audit of compliance 
requirements 

Assurance 20 Required under Phase 
2 guidance (2014/15 to 
2017/18) 

Built Environment Investment 
Programme 
& 
Infrastructure  

Southport Market High Full service review Assurance 20 Review of service 
following transfer back 
into the Authority's 
control 

Built Environment Investment 
Programme 
& 
Infrastructure  

Highways 
Maintenance 

High Review of service provision 
with particular emphasis on 
liaison with the Authority's 
Insurance and Transport 
Sections 

VFM/BR 20 High number of 
insurance claims and 
damage to council 
vehicles 

Built Environment Investment 
Programme 
& 
Infrastructure  

Contract Audit High To undertake a review of a 
sample of construction 
contracts in progress and 
contracts at Final Account 
stage 

Assurance 30 Significant 3rd party 
and Financial risk - 
reintroduced following 
termination of CAPITA 
contract  

Built Environment Investment 
Programme 
& 
Infrastructure  

KADOE N/A DVLA Data Governance & 
Contract Compliance 
Assessment. 

Assurance 3 Annual requirement 

Built Environment Investment 
Programme 
& 
Infrastructure  

Integrated Capital 
Transport Grant  

N/A Independent examination 
and certification of 2014/15 
grant claim. 

Grant 
Certification 

3 Requirement of grant 
conditions 

Built Environment Investment 
Programme 
& 
Infrastructure  

Local Sustainable 
Transport Fund 
Grant 

N/A Independent examination 
and certification of 2014/15 
grant claim. 

Grant 
Certification 

3 Requirement of grant 
conditions 

  

P
age 103

A
genda Item

 9



 

Director Service Area Auditable Area Priority Audit Outline Audit Type Indicative 
Days 

Reason for Inclusion 
in Draft Plan 

Corporate Cross Cutting Audit Planning 
Process 

N/A Updating the list of 
Auditable Areas, 
compilation of the Strategic 
Audit Plan and compilation 
and discussion and 
agreement of the  Annual 
Internal Audit Plan with 
DMTs and the Head of 
Corporate Finance and ICT  

Governance 25 Annual Requirement 

Corporate  Cross Cutting Assurance 
Mapping 

N/A Identification of assurance 
mechanisms within each 
department 

Governance 30   

Corporate Cross Cutting Various Anti-
Fraud Work 

High Various preventative, 
detective and reactive Ant- 
Fraud Work including the 
provision of Ant- Fraud 
expertise from Warrington 
Borough Council   

Anti - Fraud 100 Significant Financial 
risk  

Corporate Cross Cutting Internal Audit 
Review of 
Effectiveness 

N/A Mandatory review required 
as part of the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards  

Governance 5 Annual Requirement 

Corporate Cross Cutting  Internal Groups N/A Attendance at Operational 
User Group, Information 
Management, Council 
Breach Evaluation, 
Information Security Group,  

Governance 10   

Corporate Cross Cutting External Liaison N/A Liaison with External 
bodies, Local Authorities 
and Government 
departments on behalf of 
the Council 

Governance 5   

  

P
age 104

A
genda Item

 9



 

Director Service Area Auditable Area Priority Audit Outline Audit Type Indicative 
Days 

Reason for Inclusion 
in Draft Plan 

Corporate Cross Cutting Annual 
Governance 
Statement 

N/A Collation of information to 
support and production of 
the Annual Governance 
Statement 

Governance 25 Annual Requirement 

Corporate Cross Cutting Contract Vetting N/A Vetting of contractors by 
request 

Other Duty 20 Allocated Duty 

Corporate  Cross Cutting Committee 
Reporting and 
Attendance 

N/A Compilation of Reports and 
updates as required for 
Audit & Governance 
Committee and 
presentation at meetings 

Governance 28 Annual Requirement 

Corporate  Cross Cutting Facilitation of  
Social Media 
Access 

High Identify risks of Authority 
wide access to Social 
Media websites and risk 
mitigation mechanisms 

Project 
Support 

5 Increased use of Social 
Media over recent 
years.  Significant risk 
of resource misuse, 
Reputational and 
potentially Financial 
risk. 

Corporate  Cross Cutting Social Media 
Accounts  

High Review of the use of Social 
Media accounts as a 
Communication and 
Marketing medium and with 
a particular emphasis on 
the mitigation of key risks. 

Assurance 20 Increased use of Social 
Media over recent 
years.  Significant 
Reputational and 
potentially Financial 
risk.  

Corporate  Cross Cutting  Contracting  High Review of compliance with 
Contract Procedure Rules 
and adequacy of monitoring 
arrangements 

Assurance 30 Identified in the 
government's 
protecting the Public 
Purse document as a 
significant Fraud risk 
area 

Corporate  Cross Cutting Mobile Working High Review of arrangements for 
protection of information 
offsite and protection and 
usage of mobile ICT 
devices. 

ICT 20 Significant 
Reputational risk   

  

P
age 105

A
genda Item

 9



 

Director Service Area Auditable Area Priority Audit Outline Audit Type Indicative 
Days 

Reason for Inclusion in 
Draft Plan 

Corporate 
Support Services 

Corporate 
Finance and 
ICT 

Income Systems High Review of the Council's 
systems for collecting, 
recording and accounting 
for income. 

Project 
Support 

20 Critical area of work as it 
feeds into Financial 
System 
Upgrade/Replacement 
work 

Corporate 
Support Services 

Corporate 
Finance and 
ICT 

Financial System 
Upgrade / 
Replacement 

High Post Implementation 
Review of System  

Assurance 40 Critical ICT System.  
Significant Operational 
and potentially 
Reputational risk 

Corporate 
Support Services 

Corporate 
Finance and 
ICT 

Debt Management 
2014/15 review 
completion 

High Review will focus on the 
robustness of systems for 
pursuing debts across the 
Authority 

Assurance 15  Significant Financial risk 

Corporate 
Support Services 

Corporate 
Finance and 
ICT 

PCI DSS 3.0 High Review of progress in line 
with version 3.0 
requirements in accordance 
with November 2015 
deadline set by the acquirer 
(bank) 

ICT 10 Mandatory Requirement.  
Significant Reputational, 
Financial and Operational 
risk 

Corporate 
Support Services 

Corporate 
Finance and 
ICT 

Corporate Internet 
Website Blocking 
and Unblocking 

N/A To unblock websites as 
requested for work 
purposes 

Other Duty 5 Part of Computer Auditor 
role.   

Corporate 
Support Services 

Corporate 
Finance and 
ICT 

Risk and 
Resilience 
Activities 

N/A Management activities 
undertaken by the Chief 
Internal Auditor and Internal 
Audit throughout the year.  
This includes Risk 
Management, Emergency 
Planning, Insurance and 
Health and Safety 

Other Duty 70 Part of Chief Internal 
Auditor Management 
duties and sharing of 
Internal Audit expertise 

Corporate 
Support Services 

Corporate 
Finance and 
ICT 

Financial 
Accounting 
System 
Implementation 
and Process Re-
Engineering 

High To address any matters 
arising in relation to the 
project, post implementation 
including further system 
development and process 
re-engineering 

Project 
Support 

40 Critical ICT System.  
Significant Operational 
and potentially 
Reputational risk 

P
age 106

A
genda Item

 9



 

Director Service Area Auditable Area Priority Audit Outline Audit Type Indicative 
Days 

Reason for Inclusion 
in Draft Plan 

Corporate 
Support Services 

Corporate 
Personnel  

Casual 
Employees 

High Provide assurance 
regarding compliance with 
corporate policy in respect 
of casual employees. 

Assurance 15 Requested by Head of 
Personnel.  Significant 
Reputational risk to the 
Authority, possibly 
Financial risk also. 

Corporate 
Support Services 

Corporate 
Personnel  

Payroll Client 
Team 2014/15 
review completion 

High Review of Contract 
Monitoring Arrangements 

Assurance 5  Significant Financial 
and Operational risk to 
the Authority 

Corporate 
Support Services 

Corporate 
Personnel  

Pre- Employment 
Screening Checks 
(inc.DBS Council 
Processes) 

High Review will assess 
compliance with relevant 
legislation, policies and 
procedures to ensure all 
required checks are 
undertaken on Council 
employees. 

Assurance 20 Previously identified as 
a Weak area.  
Significant 
Reputational risk to the 
Authority  

Corporate 
Support Services 

Governance 
& Civic 
Services  

Mayors Charity N/A To undertake an 
independent examination of 
the accounts in accordance 
with Charity Commission 
Guidelines and produce an 
Independent Examiners 
Report.  

Assurance 10 Annual Charity 
Commission 
requirement 

Deputy Chief 
Executive 

Business 
Intelligence 
and 
Performance 

Data Protection & 
Freedom of 
Information 

High Review the plan and 
subsequent implementation 
of recommendations 
detailed in the Information 
Commissioner's Office 
Report 

Assurance 10 Compliance with Data 
Protection and 
Freedom of Information 
Act.  Significant 
Reputational and 
Financial risk if there is 
a serious data 
protection breach 

  

P
age 107

A
genda Item

 9



 

Director Service Area Auditable Area Priority Audit Outline Audit Type Indicative 
Days 

Reason for Inclusion 
in Draft Plan 

Older People Commissioni
ng & 
Partnerships 

Integrated Adults 
Social Care 
System 

High Post Implementation review 
of system and usage 

Assurance 40 Critical ICT System.  
Significant Operational 
and Reputational risk 

Older People Cross Cutting Care Act 2014 High Review of arrangements in 
place to implement the 
requirements of the Care 
Act 2014 following changes 
in legislation and funding. 

Assurance 25 Major change.  
Significant 
Legal/Regulatory, 
Financial and 
Operational risk  

Older People & 
Corporate 
Finance and ICT 

Cross Cutting Better Care Fund High Review of arrangements in 
place with regard to the use 
of funds  

Assurance 20 Major change.  
Significant 
Legal/Regulatory, 
Financial and 
Operational risk  

Older People Cross Cutting Integrated Social 
Care Systems  

High Running Risk Workshops, 
completing Agendas / 
Minutes and attending 
Project Board meetings to 
provide Risk Assurance 
(IAS) .  To provide support 
and advice as required in 
preparation for live running 
of the whole system 
including the financial 
module. 

Project 
Support 

35 Critical ICT System.  
Significant Operational 
and Reputational risk 

Older People Health and 
Wellbeing 

Replacement of 
Leisuremost  

High Review of ICT Controls in 
relation to the new system 

ICT 10 Critical ICT System.  
Significant Operational 
and Reputational risk 

Older People Health and 
Wellbeing 

Crosby Lakeside 
Adventure Centre 

High System and procedure 
review.  Review to focus 
primarily on areas of 
weakness identified in 
previous audit work 

Assurance 10 A number of control 
weaknesses were 
highlighted in previous 
audit work undertaken.  
Significant 
Reputational and 
Financial Risk 

  

P
age 108

A
genda Item

 9



 

Director Service Area Auditable Area Priority Audit Outline Audit Type Indicative 
Days 

Reason for Inclusion 
in Draft Plan 

Older People Health and 
Wellbeing 

The Atkinson 
Centre Follow-up 

High Follow up of 2014/15 review Assurance 5 Weak opinion 

Older People Public Health Performance 
Management 
Framework 

High Provision of assurance that 
new Public Health 
Performance Management 
Framework has been 
successfully implemented. 

Assurance 15 New Performance 
Management 
Framework 
implementation.  
Significant 
Reputational risk 

Streetscene Direct 
Services 

Trade 
Waste/Skips & 
Bulky Items 

High Review of service provision, 
risks and controls 

Assurance 35 Significant 
Financial/Fraud Risk 

Streetscene Direct 
Services 

MOT and Vehicle 
Maintenance 

High Review of service provision, 
financial risks/controls 

VFM/BR 20 Significant Financial 
Risk 

Streetscene Direct 
Services 

Assistive 
Technology 
Follow-up  

High Follow-up review of 2013/14 
audit 

Assurance 5 Weak Opinion 

Streetscene Direct 
Services 

Specialist 
Transport Unit 

High Review of service provision 
and financial risks/controls  

VFM/BR 30 Significant Financial 
Risk 

Streetscene Landscape 
Services 

Cemeteries and 
Crematoria 

High Review of service provision, 
risks and controls 

Assurance 20 Significant 
Reputational Risk 

Young People 
and Families 

Early 
Intervention 
and 
Prevention 

Adoption/Foster 
Carer & Other 
Payments 

High Review systems for making 
payments and associated 
risks and controls 

Assurance 20  Financial and 
Reputational risk is 
significant 

Young People 
and Families 

Early 
Intervention 
and 
Prevention 

Free Early 
Education 
Entitlement 
Funding 

High Review of the system for 
awarding funding to Early 
Years establishments  

Assurance 25 Concerns have been 
raised in some 
Authorities regarding 
the level of funding 
allocated based on 
inaccurate information 

  

P
age 109

A
genda Item

 9



 

Director Service Area Auditable Area Priority Audit Outline Audit Type Indicative 
Days 

Reason for Inclusion 
in Draft Plan 

Young People 
and Families 

Early 
Intervention 
and 
Prevention 

Youth Service 
2014/15 review 
completion 

High Review of the 
commissioning process and 
Client monitoring 
arrangements. 

Assurance 10 Significant 
Reputational and 
Financial risk 

Young People 
and Families 

Early 
Intervention 
and 
Prevention 

Troubled Families N/A Independent examination 
and certification of a sample 
of results based claims in 
2015/16 on a quarterly 
basis 

Grant 
Certificatio
n 

10 Funding requirement 

Young People 
and Families 

Learning and 
Support 

Schools E-Safety  High Review of management of 
E-Safety risks including 
Internet/Email Usage, 
Social Media, Internet 
connected devices e.g. 
Gaming Consoles etc.   

ICT 20 E-Safety represents a 
significant 
Safeguarding/Reputati
onal risk.     

Young People 
and Families 

Learning and 
Support 

Contracting and 
Procurement 

High Review of arrangements in 
place to mitigate key risks 
and controls 

Assurance 20 Significant Financial 
and Reputational risk 

Young People 
and Families 

Learning and 
Support 

Schools Charge 
Cards 2014/15 
review completion 

High Review to provide 
assurance in respect of 
appropriate use of charge 
cards and compliance with 
relevant policies 

Assurance 15 Significant Non 
Compliance/Financial 
Risk 

Young People 
and Families 

Learning and 
Support 

Cambridge Road 
Adult Education 
Centre Follow-up 

High Follow up of 2014/15 review Assurance 5 Weak opinion 

Young People 
and Families 

Learning and 
Support 

Linaker Primary 
Controls Follow-
up 

High Follow up of 2014/15 review Assurance 3 Poor opinion 

Young People 
and Families  

Cross Cutting Integrated Social 
Care Systems 
ECAF, Single 
view 

High Running Risk Workshops, 
completing Agendas / 
Minutes  and attending 
Project Board meetings to 
provide Risk Assurance 
(ICS, ECAF, Single view)  

Project 
Support 

35 Critical ICT System.  
Significant Operational 
and Reputational risk 

Contingency           207   

Total           1327   

P
age 110

A
genda Item

 9



 

 

Internal Audit Resource Availability - 
2015/16 

   

    
      2015/16 

    
Total Staff Days 

  
1827 

    
Less: 

   
Public Holidays 

  
70 

Annual Leave 
  

226 

Closedown 
  

28 

    
Total Available Days     1503 

    
Less Audit Activity Outside the Audit Plan: 

   
Professional Training 

  
7 

Courses / Seminars 
  

7 

Other (incl ECDL & ITQ) 
  

14 

Audit Improvement 
  

23 

Supervision & Management - Audit 
  

125 

    
Total Days for Planned Audit Work      1327 

    
Utilisation of total available days (%)     88% 

 

Page 111

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Report to: Audit and Governance Committee    Date of Meeting: 25 March 2015

Subject: Risk Management Services 

Report of: Head of Corporate Finance and ICTWards Affected: All

Is this a Key Decision?   No           Is it included in the Forward Plan? No

Exempt/Confidential No.

Appendices A – Health and Safety Audit Plan 2015/16
B - Progress Sheet - Health and Safety Audit Plan 2014/15

Purpose/Summary
To present to Members of the Audit & Governance Committee an update relating to Risk 
Management Services. 

Recommendation
Members are requested to note the report.

How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Objectives?

Corporate Objective Positive 
Impact

Neutral 
Impact

Negative 
Impact

1 Creating a Learning Community √

2 Jobs and Prosperity √

3 Environmental Sustainability √

4 Health and Well-Being √

5 Children and Young People √

6 Creating Safe Communities √

7 Creating Inclusive Communities √

8 Improving the Quality of Council 
Services and Strengthening Local 
Democracy

√

Reasons for the Recommendation:
The terms of reference for this Committee include responsibility for Risk Management, 
including the review of the effectiveness of the Council’s Risk Management framework 
and review of the Corporate Risk Register. The recommendation is made in order to 
highlight to the Audit and Governance Committee how Risk and Audit will ensure that 
Sefton Council achieves effective corporate risk management.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

Page 113

Agenda Item 10



(A) Revenue Costs
 Not applicable

(B) Capital Cost
Not applicable

Implications:
The following implications of this proposal have been considered and where there are 
specific implications, these are set out below:

Legal

Human Resources

Equality
1. No Equality Implication

2. Equality Implications identified and mitigated

3. Equality Implication identified and risk remains

Impact on Service Delivery:
The Council can only achieve effective governance with an awareness of the risks and 
opportunities it faces in striving to achieve its strategic and operational objectives.  The 
Council needs an effective strategy to manage those risks in order to provide the Council 
with a means of improving strategic operational and service performance which will 
improve service delivery to the community.

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?
The Head of Corporate Finance and ICT (FD 3456/15) and Head of Corporate Legal 
Services (LD 2747/15) have been consulted and any comments have been incorporated 
into the report.

Are there any other options available for consideration?
No

Implementation Date for the Decision
Immediately following the Audit and Governance Committee meeting 

Contact Officer: Ros Gatehouse (Risk Mitigation Manager)
Tel: 0151 288 6118
Email: rosanne.gatehouse@sefton.gov.uk

√

Page 114

Agenda Item 10

mailto:rosanne.gatehouse@sefton.gov.uk


1 Introduction / Background 

1.1 This Committee has responsibility under its terms of reference:-

“To monitor the effective development and operation of risk management and 

corporate governance in the Council”.

To this end this report is provided to update Members on the changes that have 
occurred within the last quarter in Risk Management, Emergency Planning, Health 
and Safety and Insurance services.

2 Risk Management – Corporate Risk Register
2.1 The Corporate Risk Register is reported separately.

3 Health and Safety 
3.1 The Health and Safety Audit Plan 2014/15 will be largely complete by 31 March 

2015, with some reviewing through to next year, as well as training. 

3.2 The Health and Safety Audit Plan 2015/16 will be agreed by services by 31st 
March and will be managed over the full financial year. 

3.3 The team is engaged with support for working at height at the Atkinson and 
Cambridge Arcade and updating the standards for Construction and Design 
Management Regulations which are changing. 

3.4 The team continues with routine work including monitoring the incident reporting 
system, completing pre-qualification questionnaires for current tenders, and 
checking approvals for off-site school visits.

3.5 During the period 1 April 2014 to the 31 January 2015, there were 718 incidents 
reported via the Incident Reporting system. 20 of these incidents were reportable 
to the Health and Safety Executive (HSE) under the Reporting of Injuries, 
Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations (RIDDOR).

3.6 Non-RIDDOR reportable injuries are minor, such as a cut or bruise that havenot 
caused an employee to be off sick for seven days or more.

3.7 Each incident report is checked by the Health and Safety officers as they are 
entered onto the system and further information is requested where necessary. 

Full investigations are required where there is a likelihood of a claim or if the 
incident is of a more serious nature.  

Page 115

Agenda Item 10



3.8 RIDDOR- Injury Type - Period 2014-15 is up to 31 January as reporting prior to 
year end.

Type of Injury 2013-14 2014 – 15 % of Change

Sprain/strain 7 2 -71%

Laceration 1 1 0%

Fractures other 
than fingers, 
thumbs or toes

13 11 +15%

Burn 1 2 100%

Concussion 0 2 200%

Dislocation of 
shoulder, hip, 
knee or spine

3 1 -66%

Bruising 2 1 -50%

Total 27 20 -26%

3.9 Training has been delivered to the Street Scene Cleansing service to help 
improve the quality of the reports entered onto the system. Most of the common 
incidents occur in cleansing, leisure and schools services. 

4 Insurance
4.1 Insurance officers along with colleagues from Legal Services are working through 

the North West Consortium to secure a new contract for servicing of litigated 
insurance claims with effect from 1 April 2015.

4.2 The Insurance Brokerage contract is due for renewal, with effect from 1 April 
2015.  This service will be procured via the Crown Commercial Services (CCS) 
Framework which provides a significant saving on current contract price.

4.3 The team are working with Arvato and NTT Data to develop a new system 
(‘Figtree’) which will enable the team to condense all data for insurance claims 
made against the Authority. The aim is to have this in place by April 2015.

4.4 The direct handling of Highways claims by contracted providers has proven to be 
successful.l. The next stage will be to introduce part of the Older People service 
areas and in particular Leisure Services, which will be supported by the Insurance 
Officers. 

Page 116

Agenda Item 10



4.5 Claims Received Period for 2014 -15 is up to 31 January as reporting prior to 
year end.

Types of 
Claim

2013 - 14 2014 - 15 % of Change

Public 
Liability 
Injury 

227 121 -47%

Public 
Liability 
Property

82 83 +1.2%

Employee 
Liability 

26 13 -50%

Material 
Damage
(own 
damage)

26 42 +61.5%

Motor 130 160 +23%

Total 491 419 -15%

4.5.1 The Jackson Reforms and the introduction of the Portal which fixes non-litigated 
claims costs have caused claims to decrease. The reforms change the way legal 
firms are paid so ‘no win-no fee’ claims are no longer a viable option.

4.6 Claims Litigated Period for 2014-15 is up to 31 January as reporting prior to 
year end. 

Types of 
Claims

2013 - 14 2014 - 15 % of Change

Public 
Liability 
Injury

18 30 +66%

Public 
Liability 
Property

0 1 +100%

Employee 
Liability

6 7 +17%

Motor 1 9 +800%

Total 25 47 +88%

(Litigation follows where the matter of liability is in question)

Page 117

Agenda Item 10



4.7 Monies Paid Out 

2013-14 2014-15 % of Change

Amount £1,721,547.70 £1,571,262.40 -9%

4.8. These amounts relate to public liability, employee liability and motor claims where 
there is a third party involved.

4.9 These figures relate to the date that monies were paid out, not necessarily when 
the incident occurred.

4.10 The Government continues to intervene in insurance claims around the 
independence and quality of medical evidence in soft tissue injuries. This should 
reduce “rogue” medical reports which will help keep costs down.  Fixed fees for 
reports will also apply.

5 Emergency Planning – Resilience
5.1 The Risk and Resilience Officer is currently updating the Corporate and Council- 

wide Business Continuity Planning Strategy, with a view to rolling out business 
continuity support to services during the coming year.

5.2 This will require support from senior management and involve working with 
service areas to complete a Business Impact Analysis, which will enable priorities 
to be set. Plans will then need to be tested to validate and continue to review gaps 
as service provision evolves. 

5.3 The team of volunteers who support the Council’s humanitarian response effort 
will receive refresher training to reflect new models and thinking around outcomes 
and how to achieve these during a crisis. There is a Humanitarian Assistance 
event in April, which will also inform future training needs for events of larger 
scale. 

5.4 There are two key events requiring significant support from Sefton -  the Aintree 
Grand National and ‘Three Queens’ cruise ship event.

6 Risk Management
6.1 Advice has been provided to arvato regarding Sefton’s requirements of their 

Business Continuity plans and contract assurance. This matter is ongoing.

6.2 Arrangements have been made to support Merseytravel within the reciprocal 
agreement, for Business Continuity and risk gap analysis. This has yet to be 
finalised, but the work is likely to commence within weeks.

6.3 There is engagement with the Merseyside Resilience Forum in developing 
Strategic Incident Management training for senior officers with the key agencies 
including the 5 Merseyside Local Authorities, Merseyside Police and Merseyside 
Fire and Rescue Service.

Page 118

Agenda Item 10



Health and Safety Audit Plan 2015 - 16 

1 
 

Preface 

Auditing performance is a key element of health and safety management.  Management 

control systems tend to weaken with time as people and activities change.  Health and 

safety auditing is an effective way of assessing the efficiency, effectiveness and 

reliability of the health and safety management system.  It supports monitoring and 

gives information about the system to allow review and planning for corrective action.   

Introduction 

The Corporate Health and Safety Committee is the forum by which health and safety 

standards are embedded across the Council.  Health and safety is now a standing item 

on the agenda of operational team meetings. This year’s audit plan continues to support 

staff and service managers to deliver their services whilst providing assurance to the 

senior leadership that statutory requirements are met. 

Last year’s audits highlighted many areas of good practice and a few areas where 

improvement is needed.  It provided the audit team an opportunity to gain further 

understanding of the health and safety demands of front line managers dealing with the 

diverse range of work activities. This knowledge has influenced the selection for the 

audit plan 2015-16 

Most audit opinions were overall good.  More work needs to be done on risk 

assessments in some areas as well as standardising procedures to fall in line with the 

Council’s guidance.  

We have referenced our investigations to the underlying H&S management systems 

and drawn up recommendations that can be shared across services to ensure all areas 

work to common standards. 

We have continued to use the methodology used last year whilst incorporating the 

knowledge gained from the past years as well as information gathered from attending 

the service H&S meetings where these have been established.   

The methodology includes looking at the number of reported incidents on our system, 

enforcement action from HSE involving local authorities, action from the Fire Authority, 

eg letter, notice, prosecution and current national initiatives by HSE.  We have allowed 

for challenge by services on our selection by attending DMT meetings at the draft stage 

and by including suggestions identified at service H&S meetings.  Consideration is 

given to ensuring the key high risk services and activities identified by the HSE are 

covered: highways, education, waste and recycling, social care, amenity management, 

and social housing.  This system can be replicated year on year. 

Page 119

Agenda Item 10



Health and Safety Audit Plan 2015 - 16 

2 
 

The audits are listed in sections depending on key service areas.  Crosscutting audits 

apply to all areas of the Council and a sample number of sites will be selected. 

Young People & Families 

 Auditable area Priority Audit Outline 
 

Audit 
owner 

Indicative 
Days 

1 Learning and 
Support 

M Managing medicines in 
schools and early years 
settings in line with Dept. of 
Education statutory 
Guidance April 2014 
(Quarter 4) 

Mike 
McSorley 

20 

2 Learning and 
Support 

H Health and safety 
management in design and 
technology in line with the 
new  British Standard 
4163:2014 

Mike 
McSorley 

10 

3 Learning and 
Support 

M Managing Ionising 
Radiations and Radioactive 
Substances in Schools 

Mike 
McSorley 

10 

 Street Scene 

 Auditable 
area 

Priority Audit Outline Audit 
owner 

Indicative 
Days 

4 Cleansing H Assessing and managing 
risks from moving and 
handling loads in high risk 
areas such as the sack 
round, bulky uplift and 
refuse collections 

Andrew 
Walker 

20 

5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STU H Managing risks of violence 
against staff and 
safeguarding vulnerable 
people displaying 
challenging behaviour 
whilst being transported to 
and from home in both 
Council vehicles  taxis and 
other transport providers 

Andrew 
Walker 

20 

6 Cemeteries 
and 
Crematorium 

H Assessing and managing 
risk from moving  and 
handling across the 
service 

Rajan Paul 10 

Page 120

Agenda Item 10



Health and Safety Audit Plan 2015 - 16 

3 
 

Built Environment 

 Auditable 
area 

Priority Audit Outline Audit 
owner/HS 

Indicative 
Days 

7 Economy and 
Tourism 

H Health and safety 
management of major 
events  such as Musical 
Fireworks event , Air 
Show and Food and 
Drink Festival 

Mark Long 10 

8 IPI M Ensuring client officers 
have incorporated the 
changes to CDM 
regulations due to come 
out in April 2015 within 
the procedures to ensure 
contractor compliance. 
 

Amanda 
Langan 

20 

 

Cross- cutting  

 Auditable area Priority Audit Outline Audit owner  Indicative 
Days 

9 sample areas 
across 
departments 

M H&S induction for new 
staff and those moving to 
new premises including 
first aid fire threats of 
public order and 
disruption and 
emergency 
arrangements. 

 
DMT 

15 

10 sample areas 
across 
departments 

M Control of substances 
hazardous to health of 
those using chemicals at 
work such as cleansing, 
equipment stores and 
pest control officers 

DMT 15 

11 Sample areas 
across all 
departments  

H Review of procedures 
ensuring that driving 
Council vehicles are 
medically fit and 
recognise when to notify 
the DVLA of any physical 
impairment that may 
affect their ability to 
drive. 

Jim Black 20 

Page 121

Agenda Item 10



Health and Safety Audit Plan 2015 - 16 

4 
 

12 Sample  H Health and safety 
arrangements for 
volunteers working in 
high risk areas such as 
coast and countryside, 
parks and green spaces 
neighbourhoods. 

DMT 20 

13 Sample  M Review of lone working 
arrangements for staff 
carrying out home visits 
such as finance reviews 
and home assessments 
eg. Home care provision, 
energy grant eligibility 

DMT 20 

14 
  

Sample M Review and update  
Asbestos Management 
plan and support work 
group to implement 
recommendations from 
previous Audit 

 
DMT 

 
20 

15 Sample  M Review and implement  
Health and Safety Policy 
which is due for renewal 
in April 2015  

DMT 20 

16 Sample L Review application of 
Display Screen 
Equipment work place 
assessment to address 
muscular skeletal issues 

DMT 10 

 
  

Page 122

Agenda Item 10



Health and Safety Audit Plan 2015 - 16 

5 
 

 

 Quality Assurance 

 Target area Priority Outline Project 
Owner 

Days 

14 All departments H Continued support for staff 
affected by transformation 
and budgetary cuts. 

Margaret 
Rawding 

50 

Health and Safety Resource Availability 2015-16 

Total Staff days 780 

Less: 

Leave, closedown, training 144 

Total days for planned audit work 310 

Utilisation of total available days % Approx. 50% 

 

Business as Usual - Routine non-audit time  

 Managing and refining the online incident reporting system and helping users 
access the system and advising them on investigations and completing HSE 
RIDDOR forms where necessary.   

 Keeping up to date with changes in health and safety legislation and guidance 
and updating our health and safety standards where necessary 

 Advising staff and managers on health and safety queries  

 Carrying out site workplace assessments  

 Supporting the departmental and corporate health and safety committees 

 Supporting Central Purchasing Unit with the health and safety elements of the 
pre-tender questionnaires. 

 Supporting colleagues in insurance to identify and improve risk control measures 

 Advising and supporting schools and governors on a wide range of health and 
safety matters. 

 Investigating complaints from schools/parents/staff. 

 Developing and managing the Service Level Agreement for schools 

 Monitoring storage and use of radioactive substances in schools 

 Monitoring and advising schools and other youth services on offsite and 
adventurous activities through our online monitoring system EVOLVE. 

Page 123

Agenda Item 10



Health and Safety Audit Plan 2015 - 16 

6 
 

 Representing the Council on the National Outdoor Education Advisers Panel  and 
CLEAPSS (Consortium of Local Education Authority School Science Service) 

 Delivering and facilitating health and safety training. 

 Organising a Schools health and safety conference. 

 Supporting the One Council initiatives. 

 

 

 

 

Page 124

Agenda Item 10



Health and Safety Audit Progress Report - 

20th February 2015

Auditor Auditable Area Audit Outline Progress expected 

completion date

Findings/opinion

Young People & Families

1 Anne Mason Intervention and Prevention Dealing with aggression in children's social 

care settings

Completed Mar Good - some areas to improve around under 

reporting of incidents

2 Moira Greenwood Vulnerable Children and Adults Work related stress amongst social workers as 

measured using HSE's stress management 

standards.

Results being analysed. 

Cohort extended. Focus 

groups to be set up to 

discuss results.

Feb

3 Anne Mason Learning & Support Compliance with health and safety policies and 

their effectiveness in schools 

Completed Jan Good

Street Scene

4 Mark Newhouse Direct Services Night working amongst Sefton Security staff. Completed Jan

Excellent 

Health & Wellbeing

6 Moira Greenwood Leisure Health and Safety Management at the 

Atkinson

Completed Jan Good 

Built Environment

7 Anne Mason Planning Working at Height Completed Jan Excellent 

Cross-cutting

8 Anne Mason sample areas across all departments Safe use of portable electrical appliances. Completed Nov Excellent 

9 Mark Newhouse sample areas across all departments RIDDOR reportable incidents and investigation Completed Mar
Fair - staff are not fully aware what falls within 

the category of RIDDOR reportable incidents. 

Training requires review

contd.  Health and Safety Audit Progress Report - February 2015

P
age 125

A
genda Item

 10



Auditor Auditable Area Audit Outline Progress expected 

completion date

Findings/opinion

11

Mark Newhouse sample areas across al departments controls measures for slips trips and falls Completed Jan Good - 

12

Moira Greenwood as above Managing safely training for senior managers 

including understanding of Corporate 

Manslaughter

Fair Jan Fair - workshop to be set up to agree format 

for training programme. Due to be 

commissioned by end June 2015

13 Mark Newhouse as above Legionella management in non IPI 

establishments.

Commenced in a sample of 

schools 

Mar

Quality Assurance

Moira Greenwood all departments Support for staff affected by the impact of 

transformation and or budgetary cuts.

Participating in the One 

Council Making it Happen 

workshops

Mar Update report due to be completed by end 

March

P
age 126

A
genda Item

 10



Report to: Audit and Governance Committee Date of 
Meeting:

25 March 2015

Subject: Internal Audit Fraud Report  Wards 
Affected:

All

Report of: Head of Corporate Finance and 
ICT

Is this a Key 
Decision?

No Is it included in the Forward Plan? No

Exempt/Confidential No - But Annex A to the report is NOT FOR PUBLICATION 
by virtue of Paragraph 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972.  The Public Interest Test has 
been applied and favours the information being treated as 
exempt.

Purpose/Summary
To provide Audit and Governance Committee with a summary of ongoing investigations 
and new referrals of suspected fraud to Internal Audit since the March meeting of the 
Audit and Governance Committee.

Recommendation
Members are requested to note the report.

How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Objectives?

Corporate Objective Positive 
Impact

Neutral 
Impact

Negative 
Impact

1 Creating a Learning Community 

2 Jobs and Prosperity 

3 Environmental Sustainability 

4 Health and Well-Being 

5 Children and Young People 

6 Creating Safe Communities 

7 Creating Inclusive Communities 

8 Improving the Quality of Council 
Services and Strengthening Local 
Democracy



Page 127

Agenda Item 11



Reasons for the Recommendation:

The Audit and Governance Committee, as those charged with governance, are required 
to be apprised of and review work undertaken in respect of the reactive and proactive 
response to fraud, work undertaken to investigate allegations received and significant 
fraud risks identified as part of Internal Audit’s work as part of their review of the internal 
control environment and overall Governance arrangements. 

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 

Audit and Governance Committee could choose not to receive Fraud and Investigation 
reports but this would weaken its involvement in the Council’s Internal Control 
Framework and overall governance.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

There are no financial costs associated with the proposals in this report 

(A) Revenue Costs

(B) Capital Costs

Implications:

The following implications of this proposal have been considered and where there are 
specific implications, these are set out below:

Financial
None
Legal
None
Human Resources
None
Equality
1. No Equality Implication

2. Equality Implications identified and mitigated

3. Equality Implication identified and risk remains

Impact of the Proposals on Service Delivery:

Internal Audit provide assurance to the Council that Internal Controls are provided for 
within systems utilised across the Council providing for effective and efficient service 
delivery for the community.



Page 128

Agenda Item 11



What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

The Head of Corporate Finance is the report owner (FD 3471/15) and confirms that there 
are no financial implications as the purpose of the report is to update members on new 
and ongoing work carried out by the Audit service within their budgeted running costs.

The Head of Corporate Legal Services (LD 2763/15) has been consulted and has no 
comments to add to the report.

Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Audit and Governance Committee meeting.

Contact Officer: Jim Kilburn, Computer Auditor
Tel: 0151 934 4053
Email: jim.kilburn@sefton.gov.uk

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

Page 129

Agenda Item 11

mailto:jim.kilburn@sefton.gov.uk


1. Introduction/Background

1.1 The statement by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) 
Audit Panel on the role of the Audit Committee in local government states that “Audit 
Committees are a key component of corporate governance and are a key source of 
assurance about the organisations’ arrangements for managing risk, maintaining an 
effective control environment and reporting on financial and non-financial performance”.  
The Council’s Terms of Reference for the Audit Committee includes the requirement to 
monitor Council policies on ‘whistle-blowing’, the anti-fraud, bribery and corruption 
strategy and the Council’s complaints process.  In order for the Audit and Governance 
Committee to fulfil its requirement in regard to governance arrangements in respect of 
fraud the Chief Internal Auditor will produce reports on fraud to be submitted to each 
meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee for their information and an annual 
report at each year end summarising all fraud / investigation work undertaken in each 
financial year. 

1.2 Details of any proactive anti-fraud work and a summary of cases completed since the 
September Audit and Governance Committee are presented in this report. The report 
focuses on the work undertaken by Internal Audit but will include details of 
investigations undertaken by other Sections / Departments in order to ensure that those 
charged with governance within the Council are made aware of frauds perpetrated or 
suspected. 

1.3 The report will also inform Members of the continual development of anti-fraud policies 
and procedures within the Council, areas of compliance with these policies and areas 
for development over the coming year.

2. Key Issues

2.1 As part of the External Auditor, Price Waterhouse Cooper’s (PWC) work they are 
required to obtain from those charged with governance, their perspective of fraud within 
the Council.  As part of this they ask a number of key questions including:-

“Are you (Audit and Governance Committee) aware of any fraud that has either been 
perpetrated or is suspected?” 

“What incentives and pressures do you perceive to be on management and how are the 
related fraud risks managed?”

“How do you exercise oversight over activities regarding the risks of fraud and the 
programme and controls established to mitigate risks?”

“Were any matters relating to fraud reported to members of the Audit and Governance 
Committee, where we (PWC) were not present during the year? What action did 
Management and the Committee take?”

Page 130

Agenda Item 11



2.2. The Chief Internal Auditor has produced this report to the Audit and Governance 
Committee in order to ensure they are made aware of any fraud issues arising within 
the Council and the action taken by Management.  Further, the risk register identifies 
the Managers’ perceived pressures and the controls put in place to minimise the risks 
and the risk of fraud in those areas.  The Audit Plan for 2014/15 includes a programme 
of proactive anti-fraud, bribery and corruption work, which will include a review of the 
areas where there is significant risk of fraud, the work undertaken and actions required 
will be reported to Audit and Governance during the 2014/15 financial year.

3. Update: Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) Counter 
Fraud Fund 

3.1 In September, the Audit and Governance Committee was informed that the DCLG had 
established a £16.6m ‘Counter Fraud Challenge Fund’ in order to provide funding to 
Councils to increase their capability to combat fraud. Sefton was included in a 
collaborative bid for funding with several neighbouring authorities. The bid was 
submitted on 26 September after agreement to proceed was given by the Chief 
Executive. Unfortunately, it has been confirmed that this bid was unsuccessful. 
However, this outcome will not affect Internal Audit’s commitment to future Anti-Fraud 
work.

4. Council Tax – Single Person Discount 

4.1 There is currently work being undertaken by Arvato using the Audit Commission’s 
National Fraud Initiative website in relation to Council Tax Single Person Discount.  The 
website allows Council Tax and Electoral Registration data to be matched in order to 
determine whether there are discrepancies in the number of occupants in a residence.  
In total there are 2175 matches.  The results of this work will be reported at the next 
Audit and Governance Committee meeting.

5. School Governor Training

5.1 As stated in the December 2014 Audit and Governance Internal Audit Fraud report, two 
training sessions were delivered to School Governors to address issues of ‘Governor 
Challenge’.  The training focused on why Governors should challenge the information 
presented to them, the risks arising from a lack of effective challenge and how 
Governors can demonstrate challenge.  A further training session was delivered on 10 

February 2015.

6. Completed Investigations 

Employee Conduct Investigation

6.1 An investigation has recently been completed in respect of an employee, based on 
allegations relating to conduct in the workplace. Although the investigation was 
personnel related, the Head of Corporate Personnel requested that a member of the 
Internal Audit Team be appointed as the Investigating Officer following previous work 
that had been undertaken by Internal Audit, which had been well received by the Head 
of Corporate Personnel. 

6.2 Following the notification of concerns that an employee may be using the Internet 
during working hours, an analysis was undertaken of the employee’s Internet usage 
over a sample period.  The analysis confirmed that the employee had been using the 

Page 131

Agenda Item 11



Internet during working hours and that the majority of their access related to the 
downloading/streaming of copyrighted content illegally.  This evidence was used as part 
of the case against the employee which included allegations dealt with by Corporate 
Personnel. 

Fraudulent Housing/Council Tax Benefits Claims 

6.3 Four cases of Sefton employees fraudulently claiming Housing/Council Benefit have 
been referred to Internal Audit. Such cases are investigated by the Benefit Fraud 
Investigation Team (BFIT) as per normal procedures but are referred to Internal Audit in 
accordance with the Council’s Disciplinary Procedures. Corporate Personnel and the 
relevant service manager then consider whether disciplinary action is necessary in 
addition to any sanction imposed by BFIT. Two cases were reported in the December 
2014 Internal Audit Fraud Report.  A third case has recently been concluded.  The 
decision, based on a number of factors, is that disciplinary action is not warranted in 
any of these cases.  Regarding the fourth case, the investigation has been deferred 
until the employee’s return from sick leave.

The total initial amount of overpaid benefit was £15,585.90 for all four employees.  The 
amount currently outstanding is £13,020.24.  

7. New Referrals and Ongoing Investigations

7.1 There have been no further notifications/referrals of suspected fraud to Internal Audit 
during the period 1 December 2014 to 28 February 2015.  Of the fourteen cases 
notified/referred in 2014/15, Internal Audit’s involvement in these cases has now been 
completed.  Only one of the notifications/referrals remains open due to the employee 
currently being on sick leave.  Consequently, the investigation process has been 
stopped temporarily.

7.2 A summary of all investigation work undertaken during 2014/15 is shown at Annex A to 
the report. 

8. Conclusion

8.1 The Council has a zero tolerance approach to dealing with fraud and corruption and this 
is endorsed by Members and Management.  Internal Audit will continue to raise 
awareness of the potential for fraud and promote the anti-fraud culture across the 
authority and will continue to report on our work to the Audit and Governance 
Committee.

Page 132

Agenda Item 11



Document is Restricted

Page 133

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Audit and Governance Committee    Date of Meeting: 25 March 2015

Subject: Corporate Risk Register 

Report of: Head of Corporate Finance and ICT Wards Affected: All

Is this a Key Decision?   No Is it included in the Forward Plan? No

Exempt/Confidential No - But the Appendices to the report are 
NOT FOR PUBLICATION by virtue of 
Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972.  The Public 
Interest Test has been applied and favours 
the information being treated as exempt

The following appendices containing exempt information are attached:
i) Appendix A – Corporate Risk Register
ii) Appendix B - Explanation of Amendments to Corporate Risk Register

Purpose/Summary
To present to Members of the Audit and Governance Committee an update of the 
Corporate Risk Register. The matters relating to Risk Management will be reported 
separately. 

Recommendations
Members are requested to:-

i) Note the Corporate Risk Register
ii) Consider the proposed changes related to Corporate Risk

How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Objectives?

Corporate Objective Positive 
Impact

Neutral 
Impact

Negative 
Impact

1 Creating a Learning Community √

2 Jobs and Prosperity √

3 Environmental Sustainability √

4 Health and Well-Being √

5 Children and Young People √

6 Creating Safe Communities √

Page 135

Agenda Item 12



7 Creating Inclusive Communities √

8 Improving the Quality of Council 
Services and Strengthening Local 
Democracy

√

Reasons for the Recommendation:
The terms of reference for this Committee includes responsibility for Risk Management, 
including the review of the effectiveness of the Council’s Risk Management framework 
and review of the Corporate Risk Register. The recommendations are made in order to 
highlight to the Audit and Governance Committee how Risk and Audit will ensure that 
Sefton Council achieves effective corporate risk management.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?
(A) Revenue Costs 
Not applicable
(B) Capital Costs
Not applicable

Implications:
The following implications of this proposal have been considered and where there are 
specific implications, these are set out below:

Legal

Human Resources

Equality
1. No Equality Implication

2. Equality Implications identified and mitigated

3. Equality Implication identified and risk remains

Impact on Service Delivery:
The Council can only achieve effective governance with an awareness of the risks and 
opportunities it faces in striving to achieve its strategic and operational objectives.  The 
Council needs an effective strategy to manage those risks in order to provide the 
Council with a means of improving strategic operational and service performance which 
will improve service delivery to the community.

√

Page 136

Agenda Item 12



What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?
The Head of Corporate Finance and ICT is the report owner, the Head of Corporate 
Legal Services (FD 3455/15, LD 2747) has been consulted and comments have been 
incorporated into the report.

Are there any other options available for consideration?
No

Implementation Date for the Decision
Immediately following the Audit and Governance Committee meeting. 

Contact Officer: Ros Gatehouse (Risk Mitigation Manager)
Tel: 0151 288 6118
Email: rosanna.gatehouse@sefton.gov.uk

Page 137

Agenda Item 12

mailto:rosanna.gatehouse@sefton.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 139

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 143

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Whistleblowing Policy and Constitutional Amendments
	FD 3496 - Whistleblowing Policy Appendix

	5 External Audit Annual Certification Report 2013/14
	6 External Audit Plan 2014/15
	7 Treasury Management 2014/15 - Position to February 2015
	8 Audit Plan 2014/15 - Internal Audit Performance Report - April 2014 to February 2015
	FD 3470 - Internal Audit Performance Report Annex A pdf
	FD 3470 Internal Audit Performance Report Annex B

	9 Internal Audit Annual Plan
	FD 3472 - IA Annual Audit Plan Annex A

	10 Risk Management Services
	FD 3456 Risk Management Health and Safety Audit Plan 2015-16 Appendix  A
	FD 3456  Risk Management Health and Safety Progress Sheet  2014-15 (20th Feb 15) Appendix B

	11 Internal Audit Fraud Report
	FD 3471 - IA Fraud Report Annex A @@@

	12 Corporate Risk Register Quarterly Report
	FD 3455 Corporate Risk Register Appendix A@@@
	FD 3455 Corporate Risk Register Appendix B@@@


